	PRINT HOUTHON
Cepton Gobernment Gazette REGISTERED AS A NEWSPAPER IN CEVION.	
Dublizhed by Authority. No. 6,588 — FRIDAY, OCTOBER 31, 1913. PART I.—General; Minutes, Proclamations, Appointments, PART III.—Provincial Administration.	·
PART I.—General: Minutes, Proclamations, Appointments, and General Government Notifications. PART II.—Legal and Judicial. Separate paging is given to each Part in order that it may be filed separately. Part I.—Minutes, Proclamations, Appointments, &c.	
Minutes by the Governor Miscellaneous Departmental Notices Proclamations by the Governor 891 Notices calling for Tenders Appointments by the Governor 893 Contracts for Supplies of Stores Appointments, &c., of Registrars 895 Sales of Unserviceable Articles Government Notifications 896 Hegistrar-General's Vital Statistics Revenue and Expenditure Returns Meteorological Returns Notices by the Currency Commissioners Books registered under Ordinance No. 1 of 1885	PAGE 909 910 912 913 —

PROCLAMATIONS BY THE GOVERNOR.

In the Name of His Majesty GEORGE THE FIFTH, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland and of the British Dominions beyond the Seas, King, Defender of the Faith.

PROCLAMATION.

By His Excellency Sir ROBERT CHALMERS, Knight Commander of the Most Honourable

Order of the Bath, Governor and Commander-in-Chief in and over the Island

of Ceylon, with the Dependencies thereof.

ROBERT CHALMERS.

W HEREAS the Local Board of Gampola have, in pursuance of sections 7 and 8 of the Town Schools Ordinance, No. 5 of 1906, made the by-laws set forth in the schedule annexed hereto for the Local Board of Gampola, Central Province:

Now know Ye that We, the Governor of Ceylon, in exercise of the power vested in Us by sub-section (2) of section 7 of the said Ordinance, and with the advice of the Executive Council, do hereby confirm the by-laws set forth in the said schedule.

We do hereby proclaim and declare that they shall come into operation from the date hereof.

Given at Colombo, in the said Island of Ceylon, this Twenty-seventh day of October, in the year of our Lord One thousand Nine hundred and Thirteen.

By His Excellency's command,

R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

GOD SAVE THE KING.

SCHEDULE.

By-laws made under Sections 7 and 8 of "The Town Schools Ordinance, 1906," for the Area described in the Schedule hereto by the Local Board of Gampola.

1. Definitions .- In these by-laws-

The terms "boy," "girl," and "child " mean respectively a boy, or a girl, or

a child residing in the area described in the Schedule A hereto. The term "parent" includes a guardian and any person who has the actual custody of the child.

A 1

The term "Code" means the Code for Aided Schools for the time being sanctioned by His Excellency the Governor in Executive Coancil. The term "attendance" means an attendance for the period defined by the Code

as constituting a full attendance recorded in an Attendance Register in the manner prescribed by the Code. The term "local authority" means the Local Board of Gampola.

The term "school" means a school specified in the Schedule B hereto.

The terms "adequate and suitable provision for the education of a child " and reasonable excuse " shall bear the meaning defined in sub-section 8

(1) (b) of "The Town Schools Ordinance, 1906." rm "Inspector of Schools" means an Inspector of Schools appointed The term by His Excellency the Governor.

2. Children to attend school.-The parent of every boy of not less than 6 nor more than 12 years of age, and the parent of every girl of not less than 6 nor more than 12 years of age, or, in the case of Muhammadan and Tamil girls, the parent of every girl of not less than 6 nor more than 10 years of age, shall cause such boy or girl to attend one of the schools specified in Schedule B, unless he has made other adequate and suitable provision for the education of such boy or girl, or unless there is a reasonable excuse for non-attendance.

3. Time of attendance.-The time during which every boy or girl shall attend school shall be the whole time for which the school shall be open for the instruction of children of similar age.

Religion .- Provided always that nothing in these by-laws-

- (a) Shall prevent the presence of children being excused during the hours when religious instruction is given, as provided by sub-section 9 (2) (d) of "The Town Schools Ordinance, 1906."
- (b) Shall require any child to attend school on any day exclusively set apart for religious observance by the religious body to which its parent belongs.

And provided always that when a child between 10 and 12 years of age, being 5. beneficially employed to the satisfaction of the Police Magistrate of Gampola, has received a certificate from an Inspector of Schools that it has passed in reading, writing, and arithmetic, the fourth standard prescribed by the Code for the time being, it shall not be required to attend school.

Penalties for offences.-Every parent who shall not observe, or shall neglect or violate, these by laws or any of them shall upon conviction be liable to a penalty not exceeding Rs. 20 for each offence, and an additional fine not exceeding Rs. 10 per day in the case of a continuing offence.

NOTE.-The following are the portions of the Town Schools Ordinance referred. to in sections 1 and 4 of these by-laws :

Sub-section 8 (1) (b).- A parent shall be deemed to have made adequate and suitable provision for the education of his child, if he proves that his child is in regular attendance at a school registered by the Director of Public Instruction for the receipt of a grant in aid, or at a school with regard to which an application for a grant in aid is under consideration, or at a school certified by the Director of Public Instruction to provide adequate and suitable instruction; or if he proves that he has made such other, provision for his child's education as the Director of, Public Instruction shall certify to be adequate and suitable, or if he produces a certificate from the Director of Public Instruction recommending that the child shall be exempted from compulsory attendance. Provided that no parent shall be convicted for not causing his child to attend such school, if he proves to the satisfaction of the Magistrate that he has reasonable excuse for not causing such child to attend. A parent shall be deemed to have a reasonable excuse for not causing his child to attend school, if he proves that the child is prevented from attending by sickness or other unavoidable cause.

Sub-section 9 (2).- No school in which religious instruction is given shall be named in any by-law made under clause (a) of the last preceding section as a school in which efficient provision is made for vernacular education, unless the local authority is satisfied-

- (a) That religious instruction is given only during the times specified in the school time table;
- (b) That religious instruction is not given to pupils of other denominations than that to which the school belongs if the parents object ;
- (c) That pupils who do not attend religious instruction are employed in other studies during the hours allotted to religious instruction;
- (d) That such pupils if their parents object to their being present in the room where religious instruction is given are either allowed to study in some other part of the school premises during the hours when such instruction
- is given, or their presence in the school during such hours is excused; and (e) That a copy of sub-section (2) of this section in the English, Sinhalese, and Tamil languages is conspicuously posted up in the school.

The above by-laws were made by the Local Board of Gampola at a meeting held on October 18, 1912.

Kandy Kachcheri. September 23, 1913.

SCHEDULE A.

Gampola Local Board Limits.

On the south the Kirapona-oya from its junction with the Mahaweli-ganga to the bridge over the said oya on the Nawalapitiya road, thence a line 100 yards south of the Dolosbage road up to the point 100 yards west of the junction of that road with the Four Korales near the Singhapitiya ambalam ; on the north-west and north a straight line drawn from the western end of southern boundary to the western limit of the lands described in preliminary plan 4,514, and thence a straight line to the limit of the land described in preliminary plan 4,241, the western and northern boundary of lot 4,735 in the said plan, and thence a straight line in a north-easterly direction up to the paddy fields called Tikiriappugaydeniya adjoining the Gansabhawa road to Unambuwa, and thence along the northern boundary of the fields called Koholana, Olideniya, Hadirama, Bamunapela, Navasiyapela, Bebila-aswedduma, Puwakdandawa, Medakumbura, Atalaha, Ambagaha-aswed-duma, and Porutota, and thence a straight line to the Mahaweli-ganga; on the east the Mahaweli-ganga up to its junction with the Kirapona-oya.

The following also shall be included within the limits :---The road to Pussellawa from the suspension bridge up to the 14th milepost, the Nawalapitiya road up to the southern limit of the Government Civil Hospital premises, and all houses, buildings, and premises within 100 yards on each side of the said roads, and the whole of the hospital premises.

SCHEDULE B.

Management.

C. M. S.

do.

do.

Buddhist ..

Class.

P

P

 \mathbf{P}

М

School. Gampola Boys 1 Gampola Girls' 2 Gampola Mixed Tamil 3. Gampola Mixed

Rev. W. G. Shorten do. Rev. W. Booth The Colombo Buddhist Theosophical Society

Manager.

&c., BY THE GOVERNOR. APPOINTMENTS.

No. 384 of 1913.

IS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to make the following appointments :

Mr. R. W. BYRDE to act as Chairman, Municipal Council, and Mayor of the city of Colombo, Local Authority under the Petroleum Ordinance, No. 6 of 1887, within the limits of the Colombo Municipality, and a Visitor of the Lunatic Asylum at Colombo, with effect from October 30, 1913, until further orders.

Mr. F. J. SMITH to act in the office of Postmaster-General and Director of Telegraphs, Director of the Savings Bank, and Commissioner of the Loan Board, with effect from October 27, 1913, until further orders.

Mr. G. W. WOODHOUSE to be, in addition to his own duties, Additional District Judge, Anuradhapura, for November 6, 7, and 8, 1913.

Mr. F. N. DANIELS to act as District Judge and Additional Commissioner of Requests, Kurunegala, for November 6, 7, and 8, 1913, during the absence of Mr. G. W. WOODHCUSE from the station or until further orders.

Mr. J. C. W. ROCK to the office of District Judge and Additional Commissioner of Requests and Police Magistrate, Matara; Additional District Judge, Tangalla; and

18

Visitor of the Matara Prison, with effect from October 27, 1913, until further orders.

Mr. F. D. PERIES to act in the office of District Judge, Commissioner of Requests and Police Magistrate, Tangalla, and Superintendent of the Tangalla Prison, with effect from October 27, 1913, until further orders.

L. W. C. SCHRADER to the office of Commissioner of Requests, Colombo, and Additional Police Magistrate and Additional District Judge, Colombo, with effect from October 29, 1913, until further orders.

Mr. N. J. MARTIN to act as Commissioner of Requests and Police Magistrate, Chilaw and Marawila; Additional District Judge, Chilaw; and Assistant Superintendent of the Chilaw Jail, with effect from October 27, 1913, during the illness of Mr. W. T. STACE or until further orders.

Mr. C. S. RAJARATNAM to act as Commissioner of Requests and Police Magistrate, Kandy, and Municipal Magistrate, Kandy, and while so acting to exercise concurrent jurisdiction over the Panwila district, from November 8 to 15, 1913, inclusive, during the absence of Mr. A. L. CROSSMAN on leave or until further orders.

Mr. B. AMERASEKERA to act as Commissioner of Requests and Police Magistrate, Balapitiya, for three days from October 31, 1913, during the absence of Mr. H. J. V. EKANAYAKA on leave or until further orders.

894

€

Mr. E. F. MARSHALL to act in the office of Office Assistant at Badulla to the Government Agent, Province of Uva; Assistant Superintendent of the Badulla Prison; Additional Police Magistrate for the Judicial Division of Badulla-Haldummulla; and Assistant Superintendent of Police for the Province of Uva, with effect from October 31, 1913, until further orders.

Mr. C. A. L. ORR to be a Justice of the Peace for the District of Kalutara, and an Unofficial Police Magistrate for the Judicial District of Kalutara.

Mr. A. P. WILLIAMS, Assistant Superintendent of Police, Nuwara Eliya, to be a Justice of the Peace and an Unofficial Police Magistrate for the Judicial District. of Nuwara Eliya, with effect from October 1, 1913.

Mr. J. A. MORAES to be an Official Member of the Local Board of Trincomalee, *vice* Mr. R. J. K. MACBRIDE, transferred.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 31, 1913. R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

No. 385 of 1913.

T is hereby notified that consequent on the return to the Island from leave of absence of Mr. R. W. BYRDE the following officer will cease to officiate in the class named, with effect from October 27, 1913 :--

Class II.

Mr. E. B. F. SUETER.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 28, 1913. R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

No. 386 of 1913.

IS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR has been pleased to recognize Mr. F. ROSBROY provisionally as Acting Consul for Italy at Colombo during the absence of Mr. N. FRISCH from the Island.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 29, 1913. R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

No. 387 of 1913.

Kadugannawa,

Mr. K. B. NAWARATNE.

٠ ،

Mr. J. W. BASTIAN SILVA.

Mr. A. B. WEGODAPOLA, Korala of Kandupalata.

Mailapitiya.

Mr. W. M. Appuhami, Korala of Hewawissa. Mr. K. B. Pannanwela, Korala of Gandahaya. Mr. W. B. Yatawara.

Galaha.

Mr. K. B. PANNANWELA, Korala of Gandahaya. Mr. W. M. Appuhami, Korala of Hewawissa. Mr. W. B. YATAWARA.

Ulapane.

Mr. G. DEWAPIRIAM. Mr. H. P. B. DAULAGALA. Mr. C. B. YATAWARA.

Mannar.

Mr. M. M. Nilamatin. Mr. G. Dorus. Mr. S. S. Selvanayagam.

Erukkilampiddi.

Mr. M. M. Nilamatin. Mr. K. K. Segotambi Maraikayar. Mr. S. K. Maraikayar.

Pesalai.

Mr. J. C. Philippupillai. Mr. S. Thambipillai. Mr. A. Kiristoku Thalimai.

Vidattaltivu.

Mr. Y. Kiristoku. Mr. M. M. S. Hamitu. Mr. K. Muttukkumaru.

Point Pedro.

Mr. VELAUTHER SUPPER, of Puloly East. Mr. VYRAMUTTU VINASITAMBY, of Point Pedro. Mr. APPAKUDDY VYRAMUTTU, of Point Pedro.

Valvedditurai.

Mr. KANDIAH VAITILINGAM, of Karaveddy North. Mr. SANMUGAM SELLADURAI, of Valvedditurai.

Mr. MURUGESU KUMARAVELU, of Valvedditurai.

Kayts.

Mr. SANTHIAPPILLAI SOOSAIPPILLAI, of Karampan. Mr. SOOSAIPPILLAI THOMAS, of Karampan. Mr. ARUMUGAM SOMASUNDRAM, of Karampan.

By His Excellency's command,

R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 24, 1913.

APPOINTMENTS, &c., OF REGISTRARS.

LEULE KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE HALUWADANAWA-LAWWE PUNCHI BANDA to be Registrar of Marriages (General) of Pata Hewaheta No. 1 division, in the Kandy District of the Central Province, with effect from October 29, 1913. His office will be at Marassanagedarawatta in Leula.

Mr. COOMARASWAMY SIVAKKOLUNTHU to be Registrar of Births and Deaths of Mantai North division, in the Mannar District of the Northern Province, with effect from November 5, 1913, vice Mr. A. TIRUNAVUKKARASU, transferred. His office will be at the Civil Hospital, Mantota.

KALAHE PALLIYE GURUGE CHARLES DIAS GUNASEKERA to act as Registrar of. Births and Deaths of Ambana division and of Marriages (General) of Wellaboda pattu division, in the Galle District of the Southern Province, for two months and eighteen days, with effect from November 1, 1913, vice KALAHEGAMAGE DON ENDRIS DE SILVA, on sick leave. His office will be at Pinikahanawatta in Pinikahana.

Dr. WILLIAM SITTRAVALE RATNAVALE, L.M.S., to be Registrar of Births and Deaths of Hambantota town division, in the Hambantota District of the Southern Province, with effect from the November 8, 1913, vice Dr. J. R. JEREMIAH, transferred. His office will will be at the Civil Hospital, Hambantota.

WANNINAYAKA HERAT BANDA, of Relapanawa, to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Wilachchiya Korale South division and of Marriages (Kandyan and General) of Nuwaragampalata division, in the Anuradhapura District of the North-Central Province, for three months, with effect from November 1, 1913, vice UKKUBANDA RELAPANAWA, resigned. His office will be at the Walawwa, Relapanawa.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office,	٠	R. E. STUBBS,
Colombo, October 30, 1913.		Colonial Secretary.

THE following appointments under section 3 of Ordinance No. 23 of 1900 and section 7 of Ordinance No 19 of 1907 are hereby notified :--

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Kalutara, has appointed DON JOHANIS JAYAWARDENA to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Magura division and of Marriages (General) of Maha Pattu South division, in the Kalutara District of the Western Province, for fifteen days from October 25, 1913, during the absence of the Registrar, D. C. WIJETUNGA, on sick leave. His office will be at Ambalangodawatta in Badureliya.

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Galle, has appointed MERENNA JOHANNES DE SILVA JAYARATNA to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Kahawa division, in the Galle District of the Southern Province, for thirty days from October 24, 1913, vice DAVID HENRY DIAS WIJETILAKA SURIYA ARACHCHI AMARASEKERA, dismissed. Hs office will be at Mahagedarawatta in Akurala.

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Galle, has appointed SANTIYAPUHEWA MARTINUS DE SILVA to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Ambalangoda division and of Marriages (General) of Wellaboda pattu division, in the Galle District of the Southern Province, for one month from November 1, 1913, during the absence of Registrar, GIRIGORIS DE SILVA TILAKASOORIVA KURUKULARATNA, on leave. His office will be at house No. 23 in Malanwatanewatta in Ambalangoda. The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Matara, has appointed GEORGE KANDAMBY to act as Registrar of Marriages (General) of Morawak korale division, in the Matara District of the Southern Province, for twelve days from October 24, 1913, during the absence of the Registrar, W. J. DE SILVA, on sick leave. His office will be at Welewatta in Pallegama.

895

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Matara, has appointed C. C. DISSANAYAKE to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Dikwella division and of Marriages (General) of Wellaboda pattu division, in the Matara District of the Southern Province, for five days from October 27, 1913, vice Registrar, A. E. A. SAMARASEKERA, deceased. His office will be at Gudamewatta in Dikwella.

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Matara, has appointed P. L. BARANCHI APPU to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Uduwaka division and of Marriages (General) of Morawak korale division, in the Matara District of the Southern Province, for thirty days from October 31, 1913, *vice* Registrar, P. L. ISAN APPU, resigned. His office will be at Tennapitawatta in Viharahena.

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Hambantota, has appointed DON MATHES ABEYSIN RATNAVAKA to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Paranagampalata division and of Marriages (General) of East Giruwa pattu division, in the Hambantota District of the Southern Province, for five days from October 14, 1913, during the absence of the Registrar, C. A. WIRASINHA, on leave. His office will be at Bulugahawatta *alias* Walauwewatta in Welipitiya.

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Hambantota, has appointed Don MATHES ABEYSIN RATNAYAKA to act as Registrar of Births and Deaths of Paranagampalata division and of Marriages (General) of East Giruwa pattu division, in the Hambantota District of the Southern Province, for fourteen days from October 22, 1913, during the absence of the Registrar, C. A. WIRASINHA, on leave. His office will be at Bulugahawatta alias Walauwewatta in Welipitiya.

The Assistant Provincial Registrar, Puttalam, has appointed Mr. PETER HERAT RANDENI to act as Registrar of Marriages (General) of Pitigal Korale Central division, in the Chilaw District of the North-Western Province, for six days from October 21, 1913, during the absence of the Registrar, P. DON PAULES PERERA, on leave. His office will be at the permanent Registrar's Office at Ihalagama.

The Additional Assistant Provincial Registrar, Chilaw, has appointed Mr. S. DE SILVA to act as Registrar of Marriages (General) of Pitigal Korale North division, in the Chilaw District of the North-Western Province, for eight days from October 15, 1913, during the absence of the Registrar, Mr. N. P. NIMALASURIVA, on leave. His office will be at Chilaw Land Registry.

Registrar-General's Office, Colombo, October 29, 1913. BERTRAM HILL, Registrar-General.

T is hereby notified that D. H. WIJESUNDERA, Registraz of Births and Deaths, Kosgama, and Marriages (General) of Udugaha pattu of Hewagam korale, in the Colombo District of the Western Province, will, with effect from October 13, 1913, hold his station at Kelagahawatta in Avisawella, instead of at Tanayamewatta in Avisawella, as notified in *Gazette* No. 6,559 of April 25, 1913.

Registrar-General's Office, Colombo, October 29, 1913. BERTRAM HILL, Registrar-General.

	· •		e"		•
•		×	۰.		
,	•	٥	, •		
•	GOV	VERNMENT NOTIFIC	CATIONS.		• •
	\$			•	
		•	~~ '		•
٠					
TIS Exce	ellency the Governor will o	open the Session of the Leg	sislative Council for	1913 - 1914 (on Wednesd
Nove	mber 26, 1913, at 3 p.m.				*
		, ,	By ord	er,	•
	ncil Chamber,			W. ARNOTT	
, Colombo	, October 30, 1913.		Acting Clerk o	of the Legisla	tive Counci
•	·.		́с	0	
		······································		······	
		that the date of endebugtion		TT. J.: 10.	atives liber b
T is hereb	rom November 8 to 10, 19	that the date of celebration	i oi îne înîmammad	an naogi re	suvai nas o
. anonear	тош т орующост с то то, то,	,	By His Ex	cellency's co	mmand
~ ~ / / 3	a 1 0 <i>m</i>		Dy HIS EX	·	•
Colonial	Secretary's Office, bo, October 30, 1913.				E. STUBBS, al Secretary
COIOIN	p0, October 30, 1913.	· · · · ·		, . 0030111	ai scoroiary
T is hereby into the	Second Class of the Clerica	candidates have passed the I Branch of the Public Serv	examination held in ice :—	August, 1913	3, for admis
T is hereby into the	7 notified that the following Second Class of the Clerica Name.	al Branch of the Public Serv Address.	ice :—		3, for admiss
into the	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S.	I Branch of the Public Serv Address. "Sandasiri Medura,"	ice :— ' King street, Kandy		3, for admiss
into the 1. A 2. A	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K.	Al Branch of the Public Serv Address. "Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree	ice :— ' King street, Kandy ot, Colombo.	y.	e
_ into the 1. A 2. A 3. C	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C.	Al Branch of the Public Serv Address. "Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham	ice :— ' King street, Kandy ot, Colombo.	y.	e
. into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Chinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura,' 10, New Chetty street Care of Mr. S. Thamil Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin	ice :— King street, Kandy t, Colombo. biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co	y. Juęt & Co., C	e
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Canapathy Pillai, C. Chinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura,' 10, New Chetty street Care of Mr. S. Thamil Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi	ice :— King street, Kandy t, Colombo. biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co na.	y. Juęt & Co., C	e
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Canapathy Pillai, C. Chinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S.	Al Branch of the Public Serv Address. "Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's (ice :— Y King street, Kandy ot, Colombo. biah, Messrs. Bosany tendent of Police, Co na. Office.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Canapathy Pillai, C. Chinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Sanapathippillai, V.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterin	ice :— ' King street, Kandy ot, Colombo. biah, Messrs. Bosany tendent of Police, Co na. Office. ary Surgeon's Office	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. F	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Trinity College, Kan	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co na. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. F 11. J	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasingha, A.	Al Branch of the Public Serv Address. "Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co a. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. F 11. J 12. J	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasingha, A. Jayasundera, D. J.	Al Branch of the Public Serv Address. "Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga . Registrar-General's	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co na. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadugai, S. K. anapathy Pillai, C. Shinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Sanapathippillai, V. Soonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Vayasingha, A. Gayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thamil Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Trinity College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's (Land Settlement Office)	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co ha. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
. into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadugai, S. K. anapathy Pillai, C. Shinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Sanapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Vayasingha, A. Vayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kannangara, D. H. V. W.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's G Land Settlement Offi C. M. S. Boys' School	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co ha. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice. bl. Kotte.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
. into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. anapathy Pillai, C. Shinatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Sanapathippillai, V. Soonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasingha, A. Jayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kannangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty street Care of Mr. S. Thamil Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Trinity College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Offi C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiscal's Office, Colon	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police; Co ha. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice. bl, Kotte. bbo.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. G 9. G 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 17. I	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadugai, S. K. anapathy Pillai, C. Aninatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Anapathippillai, V. Noonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Sayasingha, A. Sayasingha, A. Sayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kananagara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Knower, H. W.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Trinity College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's Office, Colon C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiscal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kachcheri, Jaffi	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co ha. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice. ol, Kotte. hbo. al.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. G 9. G 10. I 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 18. I 17. I 18. G	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. anapathy Pillai, C. Aninatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Anapathippillai, V. Herat, C. B. Foonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kanangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Knower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Tham Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Trinity College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's Office, Colon Land Settlement Off C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiscal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kachcheri, Jaffi Health Department,	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co ha. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice. bl, Kotte. hbo. al. ha. Colombo Municipali	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. I 11. J 12. J 13. I 14. I 15. I 16. I 17. I 18. G 10. I 11. J 13. I 14. I 15. I 16. I 17. I 18. I 19. J	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. anapathy Pillai, C. Aninatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Asanapathippillai, V. Herat, C. B. Kayasingha, A. Isyasingha, A. Isyasingha, A. Isyasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kanuangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Knower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A. Muruguppillai, S. S. Nagalingam, V.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thaml Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Trinity College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Offi C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiscal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kachcheri, Jaffi Health Department, Office of the Director	ice :— ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police; Co ha. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice. bl, Kotte. hbo. al. ha. Colombo Municipali r of Education.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 9. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. H 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. H 18. C 19. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. H 17. H 17. H 18. C 19. C 19. C 19. C 10. H 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. H 17. H	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Jhinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasingha, A. Jayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kannangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Knower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A. Muruguppillai, S. S. Nagalingam, V. Panditaratna, B.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thaml Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Off C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiseal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kacheni, Jaffi Health Department, Office of the Director Office of the Director	ice : ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co a. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Office. ice. bl. Kotte. al. Colombo Municipali r of Education. r of Education.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e .
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 9. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 18. C 19. C 19. C 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. J 17. J 18. C 19. C 20. C 21. C	Second Class of the Clerica Name. hayawickrema, T. de S. appadurai, S. K. banapathy Pillai, C. hinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasingha, A. Jayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kannangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Knower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A. Muruguppillai, S. S. Nagalingam, V. Panditaratna, B. Perera, K. A.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thaml Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterin Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Off C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiscal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kacheheri, Jaffi Health Department, Office of the Director Office of the Director Ananda College, Colo	ice : ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co a. Difice. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Difice. ice. bl. Kotte. al. a. Colombo Municipali r of Education. pmbo.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. C 9. C 10. I 11. J 12. J 13. I 14. I 15. I 17. I 18. I 17. I 18. I 19. I 20. J 21. I 22. S	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kannangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Kanower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A. Muruguppillai, S. S. Nagalingam, V. Panditaratna, B. Perera, K. A. Saverimuttu, A.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thaml Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterina Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Offi C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiseal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kacheneri, Jaffi Health Department, Office of the Director Office of the Director Ananda College, Colon	ice : ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co a. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Difice. ice. bl. Kotte. al. Colombo Municipali r of Education. r of Education. mbo. tment, Colombo.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
- into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. G 9. G 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. I 17. I 18. G 9. G 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. J 17. I 18. G 20. J 21. J 22. S 23. S	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Jhinnatamby, G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasingha, A. Jayasingha, A. Jayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kananangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Kanower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A. Muruguppillai, S. S. Nagalingam, V. Panditaratna, B. Perera, K. A. Saverimuttu, A. Somasundaram, S. S.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thaml Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterina Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Offi C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiscal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kachcheri, Jaffi Health Department, Office of the Director Office of the Director Ananda College, Colon Public Works Depar	ice : ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co a. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Difice. ice. bl. Kotte. al. Colombo Municipali r of Education. r of Education. mbo. tment, Colombo. tment, Pallai.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e
 into the 1. A 2. A 3. C 4. C 5. I 6. I 7. I 8. G 9. G 10. H 11. J 12. J 13. H 14. H 15. H 16. H 17. I 18. H 19. H 20. H 21. H 22. S 23. S 24. C 	Second Class of the Clerica Name. Abayawickrema, T. de S. Appadurai, S. K. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy Pillai, C. Janapathy G. M. De Zoysa, G. R. Dharmaraja, J. V. Duwearatchi, S. Janapathippillai, V. Joonewardana, J. W. Herat, C. B. Jayasundera, D. J. Kanakaratna, A. de S. Kannangara, D. H. V. W. Karunanayaka, M. D. D. Kanower, H. W. Mahaganapati Aiyer, P. A. Muruguppillai, S. S. Nagalingam, V. Panditaratna, B. Perera, K. A. Saverimuttu, A.	Address. Address. Sandasiri Medura," 10, New Chetty stree Care of Mr. S. Thaml Police Office, Galle. Office of the Superin Central College, Jaffi Registrar-General's C Government Veterina Dharmaraja College, Kan Mahinda College, Kan Mahinda College, Ga Registrar-General's C Land Settlement Offi C. M. S. Boys' Schoo Fiseal's Office, Colon "Felix Casa," Mutw The Kacheneri, Jaffi Health Department, Office of the Director Office of the Director Ananda College, Colon	ice : ' King street, Kandy biah, Messrs. Bosand tendent of Police, Co a. Office. ary Surgeon's Office Kandy. dy. lle. Difice. ice. bl. Kotte. al. Colombo Municipali r of Education. r of Education. mbo. tment, Colombo. tment, Pallai. ppallai.	y. quet & Co., C olombo.	e

3. The under-mentioned officers of the Subordinate Clerical Service have been selected for appointment, to the Second Class of the Clerical Service in terms of paragraph 10 of the Notification dated April 2, 1913 :---

Name.

Address.

1. Batcho, H. J. W.	. Attorney-General's Office.
2. Koch, A	The Secretariat, Colombo.
3. Ranaraja, P. B.	Fiscal's Office, Kandy.
4. Wijesinghe, L. B.	Public Works Department.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 30, 1913.

By His Excellency's command,

.

R., E., STUBBS, Colonial Secretary. T is hereby notified that Mr. W. J. L. ROGERSON, Cadet in the Civil Service, has passed the examination in riding, for which he presented himself on October 23, 1913.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 23, 1913.

Colonial Secretary's Office,

Colombo, October 24, 1913.

R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

"THE STAMP ORDINANCE, 1909."

T is hereby notified that His Excellency the Governor, with the advice of the Executive Council, has, by virtue of the powers by section 5, sub-section (1) (c), of "The Stamp Ordinance, 1909," on him conferred, authorized the following Joint Stock Company, incorporated under "The Joint Stock Companies Ordinances, 1861 to 1907," to compound for the payment of stamp duty on share certificates specified in Schedule B to the said Stamp Ordinance. on the conditions set out in section 5 aforesaid, sub-sections (1) (c) (i.), (ii.), (iii.), and (iv.).

By His Excellency's command,

R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

COMPANY REFERRED TO.

Plâté, Limited.

"THE VILLAGE COMMUNITIES ORDINANCE, 1889."

T is hereby notified that His Excellency the Governor, in pursuance of section 24 of "The Village Communities Ordinance, 1889," and with the advice of the Executive Council, has been pleased to approve of the imposition of a toll from January 1, 1914, by the inhabitants of the subdivision Beruwala-Alutgama, in the Chief Headman's division of Kalutara totamune, at the ferry of Badanagoda-ela, between Badanagoda and Heralatuduwa, on the Deenagoda-Badanagoda Village Committee road, and of the levy of the same rate of charges as those leviable under the provisions of "The Tolls Ordinances of 1896 and 1905."

Colonial Secretary's Office. Colombo, October 27, 1913.

By His Excellency's command,

R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

"" THE VILLAGE COMMUNITIES ORDINANCE, 1889."

T is hereby notified that His Excellency the Governor, in pursuance of section 24 of "The Village Communities Ordinance, 1889," and with the advice of the Executive Council, has been pleased to approve of the imposition of a toll from January 1, 1914, by the inhabitants of the subdivisions of Munwattebage pattu and Wadduwa-Waskaduwa, in the Chief Headmen's divisions of Rayigam korale and Panadure totamune, respectively, at the ferry of Keppu-ela, between Paragastota and Gonaduwa, on the Paragastota-Gonaduwa Village Committee road, and of the levy of the same rate of charges as those leviable under the provisions of "The Tolls Ordinances of 1896 and 1905.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 27, 1913.

R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

HE following copy of a circular despatch received from the Secretary of State for the Colonies is published for general information.

Colonial Secretary's Office Colombo, October 24, 1913.

By His Excellency's command,

R. E. STUBBS. Colonial Secretary.

The Right Hon. L. HARCOURT, M.P., to the OFFICER ADMINISTERING THE GOVERNMENT OF CEYLON.

Circular.

Downing street, September 27, 1913.

SIR,---I HAVE the honour to inform you that the Government of Brazil formally notified to His Majesty's Government on March 14 last its denunciation of the Treaty of Extradition between the United Kingdom and Brazil, which was signed at Rio de Janeiro on November 13, 1872.

2. The Treaty accordingly ceased to have effect as from the 14th instant.

I have, &c., L. HARCOURT.

" THE VACCINATION ORDINANCE, 1886."

THE following amended regulations framed by the Principal Civil Medical Officer, under the provisions of section 16 of "The Vaccination Ordinance, 1886," have been sanctioned by the Governor in Executive Council, and are hereby published for general information.

The regulations dated June 12, 1890, published in the Ceylon Government Gazette of June 13, 1890, are hereby revoked.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 28, 1913. R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary:

Amended Regulations

1. It shall be the duty of every police officer or headman, on receiving notice in writing from the Principal Civil Mediacl Officer, Superintendent of Vaccination, Government Agent, Assistant Government Agent, Inspector of Vaccination, or from any Government Medical Officer or Vaccinator, of the appointment of a place within his village or division for the performance of vaccination, and of the time when the officer appointed to vaccinate will attend at such place, to notify the same to the residents of his village or division.

2. The police officer or headman of a village or division where a vaccine station has been established shall attend the vaccine station at the appointed hour on the day vaccination is carried on at such station; should he be unable to do so, he shall send a competent substitute.

3. On the occurrence of smallpox in any division or village where a vaccine station has not been formally established, the police officer or the headman of such division or village, or the headman of the district (Mudaliyar, Ratemahatmaya, Muhandiram, Korala, or Arachchila) shall, on the application of the Superintendent of Vaccination, Inspector of Vaccination, any Government Medical Officer, or the Vaccinator of the district, render all assistance in his power for vaccinating the people in the infected locality.

4. In principal towns where police sergeants or police constables are detached to aid and assist in carrying on vaccination, it shall be their duty to intimate to the residents of the streets or divisions set apart for them that vaccination will be carried on on such dates, places, and times as laid dowrfin the programme; and they shall endeavour, to the best of their ability, to secure the attendance at the vaccine station of all persons to be vaccinated. If the vaccination is fixed to take place at a police station, the officer in charge shall, to the best of his ability, accommodate for the time being the people assembled for vaccination and the Vaccinating Officer.

5. It shall be the duty of every police officer or headman, on receiving written notice from the Superintendent of Vaccination, Inspector of Vaccination, any Government Medical Officer, or Vaccinator, to prepare and furnish a list of the residents in his village or division, giving name, age, and sex, whenever such list shall be deemed necessary by such Superintendent, Inspector, Medical Officer, or Vaccinator, in lieu of the list of the unvaccinated only.

6. Every police officer or headman neglecting or refusing to carry out the above regulations shall be punishable under the 15th and 17th clauses of the Ordinance.

7. It shall be the duty of a Vaccinating Officer, if he sees fit to do so, to take from the vesicle or vesicles of a child lymph for the performance of other vaccinations, and every parent or guardian who refuses to allow such officer to do so shall be hindering or obstructing such officer in the discharge of his duty.

8. Should any adult be called upon to produce for the inspection of the Superintendent of Vaccination, Inspector of Vaccination, Government Medical Officer, or a Vaccinating Officer duly appointed, any certificate in his possession granted under the Vaccination Ordinance, or, in the case of a parent or guardian, the certificate of a child so granted, the same shall be produced forthwith. In the event of such a certificate not forthcoming, it shall be lawful for any of the above officers to examine the vaccine marks on the arms of such adult or child. Any person who refuses to allow such officer to do so shall be hindering or obstructing such officer in the discharge of 1 is duty.

9. Should any householder be called upon by the Superintendent of Vaccination, Assistant Superintendent of Vaccination, Inspector of Vaccination, Government Medical Officer, or a Vaccinating Officer to furnish a schedule as per form subjoined, such householder, on tl e receipt of the form, shall, within such reasonable time as may therein be specified, give correctly every information therein required by filling up the form :—

To _____, Householder cf No. ____, ____Street.

Take notice that by virtue of the Regulations framed under section 16 of the Vaccination Ordinance, and published in the *Government Gazette* of ______, you are hereby required to fill in and complete the subjoined table of information, and furnish it to me within ______ hours hereof (*time and date*), in failure of which you will be prosecuted.

Vaccinator.

							V COMCONTO
Number of Inmates.	Names of Inmates.		Months.	Sex.	Whether bearing Successful Marks of Vaccination or not.	Names of Parents or Guardians.	
		}					•

Signature —

W ITH reference to the Notification dated April 4, 1908, published in the Gazette of the 10th idem, the following copy of a further circular despatch, with its enclosures, received from the Secretary of State for the Colonies, relative to the age limit for candidates for Naval Cadetship, is published for general information.

By His Excellency's command,

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 17, 1913.

L. W. BOOTH,

Acting Colonial Secretary.

The Right Hon. L. HARCOURT, M.P., to the OFFICER ADMINISTERING THE GOVERNMENT OF CEYLON. Downing street, September 22, 1913. Circular.

SIR,-WITH reference to the circular despatches noted in the margin,* I have the honour to inform you that the Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty have decided to raise the age limits for candidates for Naval Cadetships from $12\frac{s_2}{12}-13$ years to $13\frac{s_1}{12}-13\frac{s_2}{12}$ years. 1 enclose copies of the regulations embodying the new arrangements, which will come into force at the examination to be held in December next for the January, 1914, entry. 2. Their Lordships have also had under consideration the possibility of making arrangements for the inclusion of

Colonial candidates in the scheme which they have recently introduced for the Special Entry of Naval Cadets. I enclose copies of a memorandum giving particulars of this scheme, with copies of the regulations governing the entry of candidates.

3. It has been decided that no satisfactory arrangements for the local examination of candidates for Special Entry Cadetships are possible ; but, while local facilities to compete cannot be given, the names of candidates will be gladly received by the Admiralty if they can appear for examination in England. 4. The regulations enclosed are those drawn up for the year 1913, but those for 1914-16 will be on the same

general lines, except that candidates during those years must be between the ages of 171 and 181 on June 1 of the year in which the examination is held. I have, &c.,

L. HARCOURT.

Regulations for Entry and Training at the Royal Naval Colleges at Osborne and Dartmouth and on board the Training Cruisers.

(These Regulations apply to Cadets entering after September, 1913.)

1. No nomination is required by a candidate for a Naval Cadetship. All that is necessary is to send an application to the Assistant Private Secretary to the First Lord of the Admiralty. Applications should not be made until the candidate has reached 121 years of age.

2. Candidates must be of pure European descent and the sons either of natural-born or naturalized British subjects. In doubtful cases the burden of clear proof will rest upon the parents or guardians of candidates.

3. All Naval Cadets entered under these regulations are trained together until they pass for the rank of Lieutenant. After passing for the rank of Lieutenant, they may be required to serve either as general service officers or in one of

the special branches, undertaking either Engineering, Gunnery, Torpedo, Navigation, or Marine duty. As far as possible officers selected for special service will be allowed to choose the branch in which they will qualify, subject to the proviso that all branches are satisfactorily filled.

Parents or guardians of candidates for appointment as Naval Cadets must undertake for them that they are prepared to serve in any branch if required.

4. Parents or guardians are required to declare in writing their intention that the candidate, if he obtains a Cadet-ship, shall adopt the Navy as his profession in life ; and it is subject to this undertaking that candidates are selected for Cadetships. Every Cadet who enters the Royal Naval College must therefore be prepared to continue his training so long as the Admiralty are satisfied with his progress, and parents are not at liberty to withdraw their sons at will.

as the Admirately are satisfied with his progress, and parents are not at intervy to which aw then sons at whi. On the entry of a Cadet, parents or guardians will be required to undertake that, in the event of his withdrawing or being withdrawn from the College, or from the Navy before being confirmed as a Sub-Lieutenant, they will pay to the Admiratly, if demanded, the sum of £25 per term in respect of each term passed by him at the Royal Navy Colleges, Osborne and Dartmouth, from the date of his entry to the date of his withdrawal, as a contribution towards the balance of the cost of his training and maintenance not covered by the annual payment of £75 mentioned in paragraph 15.

This undertaking does not apply to Cadets withdrawn at the request of the Admiralty.

Entries take place three times a year, in January, May, and September.

Candidates for entry in January must be more than 13 years and 4 months but not more than 13 years and 8 months

of age on the preceding December 1. Candidates for entry in May must be more than 13 years and 4 months but not more than 13 years and 8 months of age on the preceding April 1.

Candidates for entry in September must be more than 13 years and 4 months but not more than 13 years and 8

months of age on the preceding August 1. 6. All candidates (except those being educated in the Colonies who have received special Colonial recommendations under paragraph 10) will be required to present themselves before a Committee, which will interview each applicant separately.

The applications must be received at the Admiralty-

For the January entry before October 1.

For the May entry before January 1.

3

For the September entry before May 1.

Appointments to Naval Cadetships are made by the First Lord from among candidates recommended by the Committee, and all such appointments are subject to the candidate passing a Medical Examination (see paragraph 8) and a Qualifying Examination in educational subjects (see paragraph 9).

and a qualifying Examination in educational subjects (see paragraph 9). The fact, however, of a candidate being invited to appear before this Committee is not to be understood as in any degree implying that he will necessarily be chosen to attend the Qualifying Examination. The Interview Committee will sit shortly before the date fixed for each Qualifying Examination.

Candidates are eligible only for one Interview and Qualifying Examination. 7. The Qualifying Examinations are held in December, March, and July, and the appointments of successful

and be in all respects well developed and active in proportion to his age. Before undergoing the Qualifying

November 30, 1905; May 29, 2906; March 7, 1908. Aug. st, 1913. † Memorandum, March, 1913. § Rugulations, March, 1913. Candidates, however, who were unsuccessful under the old regulations may again present themselves under the new rule as

in Calculates, however, who were unsuccessful under the old regulations may again present themselves under the new rule as to age which is stated in paragraph 5. Should any case occur where a selected candidate is prevented by illness from attending the Qualifying Examination, the Admiralty will consider whether special arrangements can be made for him to be examined by the Head Master of the Royal Naval College, Osborne, at the beginning of the ensuing term.

Examination he is required to pass the Medical Examination according to the prescribed regulations, and must be, found physically fit for the Navy.

It should be particularly noted that full normal vision—as determined by Snellen's tests—is required. memorandum is issued by the Admiralty, which gives details of the physical requirements of candidates.

A Medical Board of Appeal has been instituted to meet cases in which the parent or guardian of a candidate in not satisfied with the result of the Official Medical Examination. This Appeal Board will consist of the Director-General of . the Medical Department of the Navy, a physician nominated by the Medical Consultative Board, and a specialist in the particular defect which caused the disqualification of the candidate, to the selected from a list drawn up by the Consultative Board.

In the event of the rejection on medical grounds of a candidate who would otherwise have been selected for the Qualifying Examination, the parent or guardian will at once be informed that, subject to the payment of a fee of four guineas, the candidate may present himself for re-examination by the Appeal Board, and that if an appeal is desired notification must be made by the parent or guardian to the Director-General of the Medical Department, Admiralty, within a week of the first Medical Examination. The notification must be accompanied by a cheque for four guineas made payable to the Accountant-General of the Navy

*9. The Qualifying Examination is in the following subjects :---

(1) English (including writing from dictation and reproduction of the gist of a short passage twice read aloud to the candidates).

(2) History and Geography, with special reference to the British Empire.

(3) Arithmetic and Algebra (two-thirds of the questions in this paper will be on Arithmetic. The use of Algebraic symbols and processes will be allowed).

Arithmetic.—The simple and compound rules, avoirdupois weight, lineal and square and cubic measures, the elementary mensuration of rectangular surfaces and volumes, measure of capacity (pints, quarts, gallons), the metric system (the metre, gramme, and litre, with their multiples and submultiples), money (including the relationship of the cent to the dollar, and the centime to the franc), reduction, factors, the addition, subtraction, multiplication, division, and simplification of vulgar fractions, non-recurring decimal fractions, simple proportion, ratio and percentage, simple interest.

Algebra.—The meaning of algebraic symbols, substitution of values, easy identities, equations of the first degree, including simultaneous equations, verification of the solution of equations, problems leading to simple equations, multiplication and division by binomial operator, easy factors (excluding sum and difference of cubes), fractions with numerical denominators.

(4) Geometry.-The paper will consist of questions both on Practical and on Theoretical Geometry.

All candidates must be provided with a ruler graduated in inches and tenths, and also in centimetres and millimetres, a small set square, a protractor, pencil compasses, and a hard pencil.

Any proof of a proposition will be accepted which appears to the Examiner to form part of a systematic treatment of the subject. Simple deductions from specified theorems will be set.

Proofs of the validity of constructions will not, as a rule, be expected, but they may be asked for.

Practical Geometry.—The constructions shown in the appended Schedule A, 1-7 (see page 902).†

Theoretical Geometry.--See appended Schedule B, page 902. The facts stated in the following theorems, together together with riders on them :-B, 14-19, 21, 22.†

(5) French or German, with an oral examination, to which importance will be attached.

(6) Latin (easy passages for translation from Latin into English and from English into Latin, and simple grammatical questions).

The list of successful candidates will be published in alphabetical order. A certain number of successful candidates who show excellence in the examination and have also been highly recommended by the Interview Committee will receive "Honourable Mention," and will be distinguished by an asterisk in the list of successful candidates.

10. The Governments of certain Dominions and Colonies are allowed to recommend specially (through the Secretary of State for the Colonies) a certain number of candidates annually from among boys belonging to families resident in the Dominions and Colonies.

Unless such candidates, however, actually reside and receive their education in their own Dominion or Colony, they must be also recommended by the Interview Committee, and must pass the Qualifying Examination and the Medical Examination

11. Naval Cadets will undergo a course of instruction in the Shore Training Establishments for a period of four years, of which two years will be at Osborne and the remainder at Dartmouth. On passing out of the College at Dartmouth they will continue their training for a period on board a special Training Cruiser, and will then be sent to the sea-going fleet as Midshipmen.

January 16 to April 15; May 8 to August 6; September 19 to December 17.

The vacations at the Colleges are as follows :-Four weeks at Christmas; three weeks at Easter; six weeks at Midsummer.

13. The friends of the Cadets must be prepared to receive them during all the valations.

All Naval Cadets shall be subject to the regulations for the time being in force respecting Cadets while at the 14. Royal Navy Colleges at Osborne and Dartmouth and on board the Training Cruisers.

15. For all Cadets entering under these regulations, payment will be at the rate of £75 per annum for the period under training at the Colleges, to be paid in sums of £25 every term in advance to the Cashier of the Bank of England on receipt of claim from the Accountant-General of the Navy. But the Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty reserve the power of selecting from among the Cadets entered at each examination a limited number, being sons of Officers of the Navy, Army, or Marines, or of Civil Officers under the Board of Admiralty, with respect to whom the annual payment will be £40 only. In making this selection Their Lordships will have regard solely to the pecuniary circumstances of the Cadet and his parents

Applications for the reduced scale must be received at the Admiralty-

For the January entry before October 1.

For the May entry before February 1.

For the September entry before June 1.

* NOTE — Copies of the papers set at the examinations held in each year are printed by the Oxford and Cambridge Schools Examination Board, and may be obtained on application to the Secretary of the Admiralty, free of charge. It should be noted, however, that the questions in papers set under these regulations will be slightly more advanced thanthose set prior to September, 1913, in consequence of the age of entry being raised. † Note — The numbers in the schedules correspond to those in the Geometry Schedule of the Common Examination for

entrance to Public Schools as reprinted from the Cambridge University Ordinances.

Claims will be made upon the parents or guardians by the Accountant-General of the Navy for the sums payable as they become due, and the money should be at once remitted.

In addition to the above payments, any expenses incurred by a Cadet for clothing, sports, books, instruments, washing, &c., as well as the allowance of 1s. a week paid as pocket money, are included in the personal account sent to the

parent from the College as soon as possible after the end of each term. 17. No pay is allowed by Government to the Cadets in the Colleges, except in the case of Cadet Captains, who receive a small weekly allowance. The pay of Cadets in the Training Cruisers is 1s. a day, and that of Midshipmen is 1s. 9d. a day. The pay of Cadets in the Training Cruisers is 1s. a day, and that of Midshipmen is 1s. 9d. a day. The pay of Cadets in the Training Cruisers is 1s. a day, and that of Midshipmen is 1s. 9d. a day.

The fees specified in paragraph 15 will cease on the Cadet joining the Training Cruistr. will then be required to make the Cadet a private allowance of £50 a year until he reaches the rank of Acting Sub-Lieutenant, and thereafter a private allowance of £20 a year for as long as he remains an Acting Sub-Lieutenant with pay at the rate of 3s. 6d. a day.

19. The patent or guardian of every Cadet is required to provide outfit under the regulations in force.

20. All travelling expenses for Cadets are advanced by the Paymaster of the College, who will charge the sum to the Cadet's personal account.

21. Inasmuch as the Cadets have a weekly allowance paid to them as pocket money, and a charge is made to pay the expenses attending their amusements, it is unnecessary that their friends should give them any money, except on joining or on their return from the vacations, and the amount should then be reasonable. Such money as may be required

by a Cadet for any special circumstance will be advanced by the Paymaster under the authority of the Captain. 22. Any valuable gold watches or chains brought by the Cadets to the Colleges will be taken from them and placed in security until the Cadets return home. Silver watches may be used.

23. Arrangements are made for the conveyance from Portsmouth to Osborne of the Cadets who are joining the College for the first time. Such Cadets should assemble at the Dockyard Gates (near Portsmouth Harbour Station) shortly before 3 P.M. on the day appointed for joining. Cadets rejoining the College will be expected to make their own arrangements for doing so.

24. Cadets are to bring their linen clean, and clothes and boots in good order, when they join the College, and also when they return from leave, and the outfit, as specified on the list attached, must be complete. A list of the clothes left behind will be sent with Cadets when they go on leave.

Cadets are not permitted to open accounts with tradesmen. Parents or guardians are requested not to allow 25. their sons' outfitters to supply clothes or other articles without their authorization.

Each Cadet on joining and on returning after the vacation is required to produce a health certificate-signed by his parent or guardian not earlier than the day before the Cadet's return-to the effect that so far as is known, he has not for at least three weeks immediately preceding his return been exposed to any infectious disease, or entered any house where such disease had existed. A certificate, drawn up in the necessary form, is sent to each parent, and failure on the part of the Cadet to produce this certificate, duly filled up and signed, on his return will entail his *not being received*. In the event of a Cadet being placed on the Sick List information is always sent to his parents or guardians, who

are also kept informed of the progress of the patient should the illness be in the slightest degree serious. 27. Letters relative to the Cadets should be addressed to "The Commanding Officer, Royal Naval College" or

"The Commanding Officer, H.M.S. -," and not to the Captain by name.

Parents or guardians of Cadets must in all cases of permanent change of residence, inform the Admiralty and the Commanding Officer of the College or the Cruiser without delay.

The course of study includes the following subjects :---28.

Mathematics, with Geometrical Drawing. Physics and Chemistry.

Mechanics and Applied Mechanics, with laboratory work.

Applied Electricity, with laboratory work. Engineering, with workshop practice, and Mechanical Drawing.

Seamanship, with Gunnery in the Training Cruiser.

Navigation.

French or German.

English Grammar and Composition.

English Literature.

History, including Naval History.

Geography.

Bible Study.

Drill and Physical Training.

A large proportion of the time of the Cadet is given to the practical study of Engineering in the Workshops and Instructional Steamboats attached to the Colleges, and also in the Training Cruisers.

29. In all subjects of instruction the principle will be followed of giving merit marks for current work. At the end of each term the Cadet's proficiency and progress will be tested, partly by examination, and partly by the marks gained for

current work. 30. The passing-out examination of Cadets is representative of all subjects studied at the College, with the excep-tion of Religious Knowledge, which does not form part of the official examination. Marks for work done during previous

First, Second, and Third Classes will be awarded, and the class obtained in passing out counts afterwards towards promotion to the rank of Sub-Lieutenant, promotion being accelerated according to the following scale :-

For a First Class, 2 months.

For a Second Class, 1 month.

The greatest amount of time that can be gained on passing out is accordingly two months.

Cadets may be required to withdraw at any time if in the opinion of the Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty-

(1) They fail to reach a satisfactory standard, or

(2) Their conduct is unsatisfactory, or

(3) They are unsuitable for the Naval Service.

It is to be distinctly understood that the period of training, including the time spent in the Training Cruiser, 32. is a time of probation, and the parent or guardian of every Cadet is required to sign a declaration on the admission of **a** Cadet to the effect that he shall be immediately withdrawn on the receipt of an official request for his withdrawal.

When a Cadet is found to be making insufficient progress a letter is sent to his parent or guardian warning him of the possibility of having to withdraw the Cadet unless a marked improvement takes place. This warning is generally issued a term in advance, to enable the parent provisionally to make other arrangements for continuing the boy's education in case his withdrawal should become necessary.

Admiralty, August, 1913.

By command of Their Lordships, W. GRAHAM GREENE.

SCHEDULES OF GEOMETRY IN THE QUALIFYING EXAMINATION.

A.—PRACTICAL GEOMETRY.

Bisection of angles and of straight lines. 1.

2. Construction of perpendiculars to straight lines. 3.

Construction of an angle equal to a given angle. 4

Construction of parallels to a given straight line.

5. Simple cases of the construction from sufficient data of triangles and quadrilaterals.

Division of straight lines into a given number of equal parts or into parts in any given proportion. 6

Construction of a triangle equal in area to a given polygon. 7.

B.---THEORETICAL GEOMETRY.

Angles at a Point.

1. If a straight line stands on another straight line, the sum of the two angles so formed is equal to two right angles ; and the converse.

2. If two straight lines intersect, the vertically opposite angles are equal.

Parallel Straight Lines.

When a straight line cuts two other straight lines, if (i.) a pair of alternate angles are equal, or (ii.) a pair of 3. corresponding angles are equal, or (iii.) a pair of interior angles on the same side of the cutting line are together equal to two right angles, then the two straight lines are parallel ; and the converse.

4. Straight lines which are parallel to the same straight line are parallel to one another.

Triangles and Rectilinear Figures.

The sum of the angles of a triangle is equal to two right angles. 5.

6. If the sides of a convex polygon are produced in order, the sum of the angles so formed is equal to four right angles.

7. If two triangles have two sides of the one equal to two sides of the other, each to each, and also the angles

contained by those sides equal, the triangles are congruent. 8. If two triangles have two angles of the one equal to two angles of the other, each to each, and also one side of the one equal to the corresponding side of the other, the triangles are congruent.

9. If two sides of a triangle are equal, the angles opposite to these sides are equal; and the converse.

10. If two triangles have the three sides of the one equal to the three sides of the other, each to each, the triangles are congruent.

 $\overline{\Pi}$. If two right-angled triangles have their hypotenuses equal, and one side of the one equal to one side of the other, the triangles are congruent.

14. The opposite sides and angles of a parallelogram are equal, each diagonal bisects the parallelogram, and the diagonals bisect one another.

15. If there are three or more parallel straight lines, and the intercepts made by them on any straight line that cuts them are equal, then the corresponding intercepts on any other straight line that cuts them are also equal.

Areas.

1 1

+ kc +,

16. Parallelograms on the same or equal bases and of the same altitude are equal in area.

17. Triangles on the same or equal bases and of the same altitude are equal in area.

18. Equal triangles on the same or equal bases are of the same altitude.

k

Illustrations and explanations of the geometrical theorems corresponding to the following algebraical 19. identities :-

$$\begin{array}{l} (a + b + c + \ldots) = ka + kb \\ (a + b)^2 = a^2 + 2ab + b^2, \\ (a - b)^2 = a^3 - 2ab + b^4, \end{array}$$

$$a^2 - b^2 = (a + b) (a - b).$$

Loci.

21. The locus of a point which is equidistant from two fixed points is the perpendicular bisector of the straight

line joining the two fixed points. 22. The locus of a point which is equidistant from two intersecting straight lines consists of a pair of straight lines. which bisect the angles between the two given lines. .

	*	Osborne	Dartmouth	Training Cruiser.	Remarks.
Sheets		. 6	6	6	······································
Pillowcases	•• •	. 3	3	3	
Uniform jacket*	. ,	(1	· 1	1	
Uniform trousers*	fine)	1 [. 1	1	
Unitorin waistcoat		.]1	1		
Flannel-lined waistcoat* J Uniform caps, peak half turned do	• •	U U	1	$\overline{2}$	
Working summer suit, blue tweed,	with two poins the second	. Z			• •
Working winter suit, of special ma		* 1	1	1	
working without sure, or spectral inte			1		The material of pattern jacke
Loose-fitting overcoat, monkey ja	cket*	1 1	1	·	is to be strictly adhered to
			• •	1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	Used as overcoat at Osborne
					and forms part of working
Cloth uniform monkey jacket	••		·	· 1	winter suit at Dartmouth.
Uniform great coat*	••		1	1	
11 A.					Optional at Osborne, as th
					loose-fitting monkey jacke
					is considered sufficient fo ordinary wear.

LIST OF ARTICLES REQUIRED FOR & NAVAL CADET UNDER TRAINING.

* A pattern can be seen at the Admiralty Pattern Rooms, Broadway, Westminster, S.W.

PART I. CEYLON GOVERNMENT GAZETTE - Oct. 31, 1913

	•	Osborne.	Dartmcuth.	Training Cruiser.	Remarks.
Vhite flannel trousers (well shrunk)		4	4	6	
Vhite flannel shirt (with collars to turn down)		4	6	• 6	
White flannel shirts with collar bands		4	_		•
White flannel collars		6	-	· ·	
White day shirts		3	6	8	
collars*		. 6	12	12	
	••	3	3	4	•
yjama suits	. • •	81	ð	*	
ocks { Merino	••		8	-8	
	••	6∫-	к 		a
Drawers Thin merino (short)	• •	4}	6	6.	
(Inick (long)	• •	4)			· · ·
Vests	• •	4}	6	6	· •
	• •		1 -		,
Bath towel		4	4	4	
Face towel		4	4	4	
weaters (high neck)		2	2	3	
Veckties (black silk of uniform pattern)		2	2	. 2	<u>;</u>
Pocket handkerchiefs		12	12	12	
White woollen gloves		2	2	2	
Braces		2	2	$\overline{2}$	
Boots, strong laced, soles at least § in. thick	••	Ĩ	2	2	,
boots, strong faced, soles at least § in. thick bloes, Oxford patent leather, with strong soles	••	1		$\begin{pmatrix} 1\\1 \end{pmatrix}$	Plain fronts, no toecaps.
	• ••			1 ''	
Iniform gaiters	<u>.</u>	1	1	1	
Hair brush, comb, clothes brush, tooth brush, nail	brush				
sponge		1	1	1	· .
Soiled linen bag, with name		2	2	2	
Rug of uniform pattern*		1	1	1	
Portmanteau, with name		1	1	1	To be of following dimensions :
					2 ft: 4 in. by 1 ft. 5 in. by
					l ft. l in.
Fravelling bag, with initials		1	1	1.	To be of such a size that it can
travening bag, whith includes and an	• •			<u>,</u>	be stowed inside portman-
					teau when latter is empty.
		1	1	1	total whom haves is empty.
Xey ring	• •	2	2		Supplied by Admiralty.
Overall suits	••	ĩ			Supplied by Additially.
Naterproof coat or a pegamoid coat	• •		-	· 1]	
Football knickers, jersey, boots, and stockings	• •	1	1	1	*
ymnastic belt	•••	1	1	1	•
inen cricket hat	• •	1	1	1	Obtainable at College.
straw hat		1	ا	1	e sjuniasie af eenege.
Knife lanyards	· • •	asn	ecessary) — I	
White canvas gymnastic shoes	• (1	† ľ	i I	
Brown canvas shoes, with thick rubber soles		1	1	1	
Sea chest covers		*		2	
Jap covers		80	l	3	
Duck trousers		1 85-	-	3	
	•••			1	
Comforter	•7•	J		1	
Shoes, thick, for engine room	• •		1 . —		
loves for engine room		1	-	1	T H A A A
Midshipman's sea chest, complete	• 5•	1	1	1	Length, 3 ft. 6 in. ; breadth,
· .		·	1		2 ft.; height, 2 ft. 3 in. Name
		18- 18-			in full on plain brass plate to be attached.

It is particularly requested that the sea chest may be at Osborne seven days previous to the Cadets joining. NoTE -(1) Clothing to be distinctly marked with the Cadet's name in full.

(2) Trousers to be made without pockets, and the two working suits to have only one pocket on left outside breast, and one pocket inside right breast.

(3) There is no special pattern for underclothing.

(4) Government bedding will be supplied, for which a charge of 1s. a month will be made. (This does not include sheets or pillowcases.)

The following articles can be supplied at the Colleges if the Cadets require them :---

Braces Silk ties (uniform) Tooth brushes Tooth powder and paste	Collar studs Front studs Links Boot laces	Cashmere scarves Bathing drawers Cricket shoes Key rings	¢
Tooth powder and paste	Boot laces	hey rings	

Articles supplied at the Colleges will be charged to the Cadet's personal account ; they will be charged at cost price allowing sufficient margin to cover expenses of transit only.

REGULATIONS RESPECTING SEXTANTS.

Cadets when entering on their fifth term at Dartmouth should already have procured a sextant in a box, such instrument being obtained by parents ; a leather case is not necessary.

A pattern can be seen at the Admiralty Pattern Rooms, Broadway, Westminster, S.W.
 For first year at the Royal Naval College, Osborne, Cadets may wear any suitable black laced boots which they have been wearing prior to joining the College.

903

Any new sextant must be approved by the Captain of the College, and must have the following qualifications :-

(1) Strong frame and well finished in all respects ; all loose fittings to be stamped with the number.

Radius not to be less than $6\frac{1}{2}$ inches to middle of the graduation. (2)

(3) Arc distinctly cut, and to read to 10 seconds up to at least 125° on, and 5° off, the arc, the vernier being divided three divisions to the right of the index.

(4) Shades to be of neutral tint and of satisfactory densities.

(5) A star telescope (not inverting images) to be provided, and an inverting telescope with two eyepieces, one of which to have a magnifying power of at least 7 diameters. The telescopes and collar to be fitted with interrupted thread. (6) Adjusting screws to mirrors to be placed in positions as little exposed as possible, preferably at the base of the mirrors, to be recessed so as to be moved by a squared key or screwdriver and fitted with covers.

(7) Two shades for eyepieces of different intensities to be ground conical, to slip on, not screw.

(8) Handle to be of good size.

(9) Each sextant must be accompanied by a Kew Certificate, Class A.

(10) A button over the handle besides the usual chocks for keeping the instrument in place when the lid is closed. Box to have recessed hooks for securing the lid and a recessed handle.

(11) No sextant will be accepted in which the unsilvered portion of the horizon glass is absent, or the telescope so fitted as not to be entirely removable in one piece, and the horizon glass should have a minimum width of 11 inch. (12) The name of the owner to be on both sextant and box.

Sextants possessing the necessary qualifications can be obtained from various makers. A good $6\frac{1}{2}$ -inch instrument can be obtained for £7. 10s.

Sextants presented to Cadets which have belonged to parents or others are not required to conform rigidly to the standard, provided they are of radius not less than that prescribed and are considered suitable by the Captain of the College ;

but no sextant can be accepted unless accompanied by a Kew Certificate, Class A.

SPECIAL ENTRY OF NAVAL CADETS.

In adjusting the supply of Naval Officers to the requirements of the fleet the fundamental condition is that, while it takes only two years to build a battleship, it takes about nine years from the time at which the Cadet enters Osborne to make a Naval Lieutenant.

The scheme of training instituted by the Board of Admiralty in 1903, which is based on the principle of the common entry and training of executive and engineer officers and the abolition of the old distinctions between them, is well established as the main source of supply of officers, and it has now been sufficiently tested by results to demonstrate the general soundness of the ideas on which it was founded.

The scheme of 1903, however, taken by itself, like any scheme under which the boy has to receive a lengthy general education and professional training after admission to the Navy, lacks the elasticity as to numbers which would enable the supply of officers to keep pace with additional demands arising from the unexpected expansion of the fleet. It was not possible nine years ago to estimate with certainty the present requirements of the fleet ; and a situation has in fact arisen which makes the forthcoming provision of officers, based on calculations made in the early years of the new scheme, insufficient for the evident wants of the fleet in the near future.

The new requirements of the Air and Submarine Services alone account for a substantial addition to the list. The establishment of the Dominion Navies has thrown an additional demand upon the list of officers of the Royal Navy by whom the Dominion fleets will be in the first instance organized and manned. The Cadets' Colleges are filled to their utmost capacity ; and though it is necessary to consider their enlargement as a provision for future requirements, no step of the kind could possibly meet the more immediate necessity It has, therefore, become imperative to turn to supplementary sources of supply by which the prospective shortage may be expeditiously countered. The greatly augmented demand for officers resulting from the increased requirements above referred to will be met

in part by promotions from the lower deck and in part by absorption of officers of the R. N. R. from the Meréantile Marine ; but estimates which have been prepared of the numbers of Lieutenants likely to be wanted in the years from 1916 to-1920 show that after allowing for these supplements to the normal source of supply there will still be a deficiency, to meet which officers should be provided in some other manner, so as to be available for service by 1920.

It is proposed to make good this deficiency by means of the special entry of a limited number of Cadets of about the age of 18 who have completed their general education in the public schools or elsewhere. A number of such Cadets not exceeding 30 annually will be admitted by competitive examination of selected candidates during this and each of the succeeding three years. They will be sent to a Naval establishment for a course of professional training before being distributed as Midshipmen in the fleet. Their service as Midshipmen will be somewhat shortened in comparison with that of other Midshipmen in view of their greater maturity. The same subsequent career will be open to them as to officers who have entered through Osborne. They will be free to volunteer for service in any one of the special branches.

It is necessary to repeat that the scheme of special admissions is in the nature of an emergency measure, designed to prevent the shortage referred to above, and that the intention of the Board is to retain the Osborne-Dartmouth training for Naval Officers.

A fundamental feature in the training of Cadets entered at Osborne is its large scientific and engineering element. This not only fits the young officer for service in the engine room, but gives him such an acquaintance with mechanical science as prepares him to handle intelligently the mechanical and electrical appliances of warships. It is highly important that officers entered in the manner now contemplated shall come to have as far as possible a like qualification.

With this view the Entrance Examination will be such as to attract candidates who have received at school a good grounding in Mathematics, Mechanics, and Physics. The subjects of examination will be nearly identical with those prescribed for entry to Woolwich, and the same question papers will be used, but some weight will be assigned to an elementary knowledge of engineering science in addition to the usual Woolwich subjects.

Further, the course of training which these Cadets will undergo after admission will consist largely of instruction of a practical kind in Naval engineering and in the service applications of electricity.

The first special entry under these conditions will take place by competitive examination in June next. Candidates must be not less than $17\frac{1}{2}$ nor more than 19 on June 1. In 1914 and after the upper limit of age will be $18\frac{1}{2}$. The names of candidates should be sent in addressed to the Secretary of the Admiralty, Whitehall, S.W., so as to reach him on or before April 30.

An Admiralty Committee will interview each candidand and examine credentials furnished by the head master of the school he is attending or last attended. A report will be obt. ined beforehand from the head master for the information of the Committee as to the candidate's conduct, abilities, past training and general promise of suitability. On the report of this Committee it will be determined whether the candidate shall be admitted to compete. Candidates must also pass the usual medical tests.

Candidates admitted to compete will present themselves for examination in June by the Civil Service Commissioners in the following subjects :-

und projecti i	•	• ,			Marks.
English		* •			2,000
English History and Geography	••	.7		• •	2,000
French or German or Latin Mathematics	• •	• •	* •	••	2,000
Elementary	474				2,000
Intermediate	••	* % *	••		2,0 00
Higher (optional)		••	• •	• •	2,000
Science (Physics and Chemistry)		• •	••	• •	2,000
Elementary Engineering (optional)	• •	• •	••	2,000

Both papers marked optional may be taken. Candidates will not be excluded who do not take the papers marked optional, but no candidate will be accepted who does not show a competent knowledge of Mathematics as well as obtain a satisfactory aggregate in the examination.

Certificate A obtained in the "Officers' Training Corps " will entitle the holder to an addition of 200 marks.

The question papers (except in Elementary Engineering) will be the same as those taken in corresponding subjects in the Military Entrance Examinations, particulars of which can be obtained from the Civil Service Commissioners, Burlington Gardens, W.

The paper on Elementary Engineering will comprise questions in the subjects of the attached schedule. questions will be of a very elementary character, and knowledge of workshop practice will not be required. The

Candidates who are successful in the competition will be admitted as Naval Cadets to a course of training. Thev will then be distributed for service as Midshipmen in the fleet. They will become Midshipmen later in age than Cadets who enter through Osborne, but their service in that rank will be shorter, with the general result that except for the effect of the accelerated promotion which they may obtain by doing well in their final examinations, their age will usually be about a year more on attaining the rank of Lieutenant. This will be no bar to their advancement according to merit.

Information respecting the pay and expenses of Naval officers may be obtained from the Secretary of the Admiralty.

March 1913.

SYLLABUS OF EXAMINATION IN ELEMENTARY ENGINEERING.

Applications in mechanism of elementary mechanical principles. Machines considered as means of (a) converting motion, (b) transmitting power. Simple examples. Velocity ratio. Mechanical advantage. Efficiency. Horse power, how measured. Dynamometers. The indicator and indicator diagrams. Crank-effort in relation to piston thrust. Function of fly wheel.

Elementary treatment of strength of materials. Tensile, compressive, and shearing stress. Elastic and non-elastic strain ; elastic limit. Hooke's Law. Young's Modulus of Elasticity. Behaviour of iron and steel in a testing machine. Stress-strain diagrams. Simple examples of calculation of dimensions in relation to strength. Stresses in the members of frames where the members are jointed and loaded at the joints ; graphic method.

Principle of the conservation of energy as applied in the steam engine and other heat engines. Conversion of energy of fuel into heat, and heat into mechanical effect. Boiler and engine efficiency. Common forms of engines and boilers, and general features of action. Properties of steam. Expansion of steam in the cylinder. Compound expansion. The slide valve. Governing of engines. Types of steam turbines. Internal combustion engines using gas or oil. The four-stroke cycle.

REGULATIONS FOR THE SPECIAL ENTRY OF NAVAL CADETS.

1. Candidates for admission in 1913 must be not more than 19 nor less than $17\frac{1}{2}$ years of age on June 1, 1913. No nomination is required. Applications should be made to the Secretary of the Admiralty, Whitehall, S.W., if possible before April 1, but will be accepted up to April 30. A form of application to be filled in by the parent or guardian of the candidate may be obtained from the Admiralty.

Candidates must be of pure European descent and the sons either of natural-born or naturalized British subjects. In doubtful cases the burden of clear proof will rest upon the candidate. Candidates must be unmarried.

3. Applicants who satisfy these conditions will be invited to appear before a Committee at the Admiralty, who will

determine whether they will be admitted to compete. Candidates will be required to pass at the same time a Medical Examination, according to the prescribed regulations, as to their physical fitness for the Navy.
4. Every candidate must be in good health, and free from any physical defect of body, impediment of speech, defect of sight or hearing, and also from any predisposition to constitutional or hereditary disease or weakness of any kind, and be in all respect well developed and active in presention to be be according to be according to the second s and be in all respects well developed and active in proportion to his age.

It should be particularly noted that full normal vision-as determined by Snellen's tests-is required for candidates A memorandum is issued by the Admiralty, which gives details of the physical requirements for Naval Cadetships. of candidates.

5. Candidates admitted to compete will present themselves for examination in June by the Civil Service Commissioners. Particulars of the examination can be obtained from the Secretary, Civil Service Commission, Burlington Gardens, W. (See also Appendix I. attached.)

By arrangement between the Admiralty and the War Office a candidate who is admitted to compete in the examina-tion for special entry as a Naval Cadet may, if he so desires, and provided he fulfils all the necessary conditions, present himself at the same time for admission to the Royal Military Academy, Woolwich, or Royal Military College; Sandhurst, or to supplementary first appointments in the Boyal Marines, in which case he must express definitely his order of preference* before the examination has begun. For particulars of the conditions of entry to the Royal Military Academy and Royal Military College application should be made to the Secretary, Civil Service Commission.

Regulations for supplementary first appointments in the Royal Marines may be obtained from the Secretary of the Admiralty.

A list of successful candidates in order of merit will be published by the Civil Service Commission. 6.

Successful candidates will be appointed as Cadets to undergo a course of training in a Naval establishment 7. for a period of 14 years. On completing this course, and passing out satisfactorily, they will join the fleet as Midshipmen. 8. Naval Cadets under training will be subject to the regulations for the time being in force respecting such Cadets.

* Following the Army Regulations, a candidate may say that if he is not among the first (so many) successful competitors for the Royal Military Academy or the Royal Military College (as the case may be) he will elect for a Naval Cadetship.

' Parents or guardians are required to make a private allowance of £50 per annum to Cadets from the time they 9. join the Naval Service until they reach the rank of Sub-Lieutenant (namely, for a period of about 31 years). On reaching the rank of Sub-Lieutenant an officer is required to provide himself with the uniform of a Commissioned Officer.

10. Cadets will be paid 1s. a day from the time of entry until they become Midshipmen, when their pay will become 1s. 9d. a day. On reaching the rank of Sub-Lieutenant an officer will be paid 5s. a day. The commencing rate of pay of a Lieutenant, reached after at most two years as Sub-Lieutenant, is 10s. a day. A Sub-Lieutenant can meet his mess and other necessary expenditure on the pay of 5s. a day.

11. The parent or guardian of every Cadet is required to provide outfit under the regulations in force. A list of the outfit required under present regulations is attached. The outfit, together with a sextant, costs about £60.

12. All travelling expenses for Cadets are advanced by the Paymaster of the Naval Establishment to which they are attached, but will be charged to the Cadet.

Such money as may be required by Cadets for any special circumstance will be advanced by the Paymaster under the authority of their Commanding Officer.

13. Parents or guardians of Cadets must in all cases of permanent change of residence communicate the same to the Admiralty and to the Commanding Officer of the Naval Establishment in which their sons are serving.

14. Cadets may be required to withdraw at any time if in the opinion of the Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty-

(1) They fail to obtain a satisfactory standard, or

(2) Their conduct is unsatisfactory, or(3) They are for any reason considered unsuitable for the Naval Service.

15. It will be open to officers after reaching Commissioned rank to volunteer for service in any one of the special branches, undertaking either Navigation, Gunnery, Torpedo, or Engineering duty.

Admiralty, March, 1913.

By command of Their Lordships, W. GRAHAM GREENE.

	LIST	OF ARTICLES	REQUIRED (N JOIN	JING
•					Remarks.
Sheets			6		
Pilloweases			3		í,
Uniform jackets*)		(1		۰. ۱
Uniform trousers*	(superfine)				- -
Uniform waistcoat*	(
Uniform caps, peak	half turned down	* (superfine)			
Working summer sui	t. blue tweed, wi	th two pairs tr	users* 1		د
Working winter suit	of special mater	ial*	Ì		The material of pattern jacket
8	or special model		•••••	· ^,	- is to be strictly adhered to.
Cloth uniform monk	ev iacket		1		s is to be surrently authered to.
Uniform great coat*			1		
White flannel trouse			6		
White flannel shirts	with collars to t	urn down)	6		
White day shirts	(**************************************		. 8		2
Collars*			12		
Pyjama suits	••	••	4		
(Merino		••		•••	
Socks Thick we		• •	8	3 in all	
(Thin me	rino (short)	N			
	winter (long)	}	(6 in all	
(Thin mo		1 · ·			
Vests Thick for		}	(8 in all	
Bath towel)			
Face towel	••	••	4		
Sweaters (high neck)	\ \	••			
Neckties (black silk	of uniform netty		. 2		
Pocket handkerchief	a annorm paul	5111)	12		•
White woollen glove		••			
Braces		••	2		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Boots, strong laced,	soles at least 3 i	n thick		2 · · · 2 7	۲.
Shoes, Oxford paten	t leather. with st	rong soles	1		Plain fronts, no toecaps.
Uniform gaiters]		· · · · ·
Hair brush, comb, c	lothes brush too	th bruch nail	hmuch	• ••	
sponge		, on costi, nom			
Soiled linen bag, wit	h name	••	2		
Rug, of uniform pat		••			•
Portmanteau, with		••	1		To be of faller in a line of the second
- ··· ·		••		• • •	To be of following dimensions:
		,			2 ft. 4 in. by 1 ft. 5 in. by 1 ft. 1 in.
Travelling bag, with	initials]	l I	
		••			To be of such a size that it can
•			,		be stowed inside portman-
Key ring		•	1	ι	teau when latter is empty.
Overall suits					Semalia J. Law A. Jacking Line
Waterproof coat]		Supplied by Admiralty.
Football knickers, je	ersey, boots, and	l stockings	1		
Gymnastic belt		10		-, +··	
Linen cricket hat		5. F	· · · · ·		
Straw hat	••	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Brown canvas shoes	, with thick rub	ber soles 🛝	1		· · ·
Sea chest covers	••	\ \			
Cap covers	• •	· · · `			
Duck trousers		· · /		3	
		V	· · · ·		and the second

* A pattern can be seen at the Admiralty Fattern Rooms, Broadway, Westminster.

906

5. CEYLON GOVERNMENT GAZETTE - Oct. 31, 1913 PART I.

plate to be attached.

.c' Remarks. Comforter 1 Shoes, thick, for engine room 1 Gloves for engine room Length, 3 ft. 6 in. ; breadth, Midshipman's sea chest, complete 2 ft.; height, 2 ft. 3 in. Name in full on plain brass

It is particularly requested that the sea chest may be delivered at least two days previous to the Cadets joining the Naval Establishment.

NOTE.-(1) Clothing to be distinctly marked with the Cadet's name in full.

(2) Trousers to be made without pockets, and the two working suits to have only one pocket on left outside breast, and one pocket inside right breast.

(3) There is no special pattern for underclothing.
(4) Government bedding will be supplied, for which a charge of 1s. a month will be made. (This does not include) sheets or pillowcases.)

REGULATIONS RESPECTING SEXTANTS.

Cadets after joining will be required to procure a sextant in a box; a leather case is not necessary.

Any new sextant must be approved by the Captain of the Establishment, and must have the following qualifications :--(1) Strong frame and well finished in all respects; all loose fittings to be stamped with the number.

(2) Radius not to be less than $6\frac{1}{2}$ inches to middle of the graduation.

(3) Arc distinctly cut, and to read to 10 seconds up to at least 125° on, and 5° off, the arc, the vernier being divided three divisions to the right of the index.

(4) Shades to be of neutral tint and of satisfactory densities.

(5) A star telescope (not inverting images) to be provided, and an inverting telescope with two eyepieces, one of which to have a magnifying power of at least 7 diameters. The telescopes and collar to be fitted with interrupted thread.

(6) Adjusting screws to mirrors to be placed in positions as little exposed as possible, preferably at the base of the mirrors, to be recessed so as to be moved by a square key or screwdriver and fitted with covers.

Two shades for evenieces of different intensities to be ground conical, to slip on, not screw. (7)

(8) Handle to be of good size.

(9) Each sextant must be accompanied by a Kew Certificate, Class A.

(10) A button over the handle besides the usual chocks for keeping the instrument in place when the lid is closed. Box to have recessed hooks for securing the lid and a recessed handle.

(11) No sextants will be accepted in which the unsilvered portion of the horizon glass is absent, or the telescope so fitted as not to be entirely removable in one piece, and the horizon glass should have a minimum width of $l_{\frac{1}{2}}$ inch.

(12) The name of the owner to be on both sextant and box.

Sextants possessing the necessary qualifications can be obtained from various makers. A good $6\frac{1}{2}$ -inch instrument can be obtained for £7. 10s.

Sextants presented to Cadets which have belonged to parents or others are not required to conform rigidly to the standard, provided they are of radius not less than that prescribed and are considered suitable by the Captain of the Establishment ; but no sextant can be accepted unless accompinied by a Kew Certificate, Class A.

APPENDIX I.

SUBJECTS OF EXAMINATION.

								Marks.
	English	••		••	••		••	2,000
	English History and Geography	••	•	••	••			2,000
	French or German or Latin	••			••			2,000
	Mathematics							
	Elementary	••		••	۰	•		2,000
	Intermediate	••		••				2,000
	Higher (optional)	••			•••			2,000
	Science (Physics and Chemistry)	••		••	••			2,000
•	Elementary Engineering (optional)	1		••'	••	•	••	2,000
	Elementary Engineering (optional)			 ••'	. ••	•	••	2,000

Both papers marked optional may be taken. Candidates will not be excluded who do not take the papers marked optional, but no candidate will be accepted who does not show a competent knowledge of Mathematics as well as obtain a satisfactory aggregate in the examination.

Certificate A obtained in the "Officers' Training Corps" will entitle the holder to an additiona of 200 marks.

The question papers (except in Elementary Engineering) will be the same as those taken in corresponding subjects in the Military Entrance Examinations, particulars of which can be obtained from the Civil Service Commissioners, Burlington Gardens, W.

The paper on Elementary Mngineering will comprise questions in the subjects of the following syllabus. The questions will be of a very elementary character, and knowledge of workshop practice will not be required.

Syllabus of Examination in Elementary Engineering.

Applications in mechanism of elementary mechanical principles. Machines considered as means of (a) converting motion, (b) transmitting power. Simple examples. Velo ity ratio. Mechanical advantage. Efficiency. how measured. Dynamometers. The indicator and indicator diagrams. Crank-effort in relation to Horse power, Crank-effort in relation to piston thrust. Function of fly wheel.

Elementary treatment of strength of materials. Tensile, compressive, and shearing stress. Elastic and non-elastic strain; elastic limit. Hooke's Law. Young's Modulus of Elasticity. Behaviour of iron and steel in a testing machine. Stress-strain diagrams. Simple examples of calculation of dimensions in relation to strength. Stresses in the members of frames where the members are joined and loaded at the joints ; graphic method.

Principle of the conservation of energy as applied in the steam engine and other heat engines. Conversion of energy of fuel into heat, and heat into mechanical effect. Boiler and engine and other heat engines. Conversion of boilers, and general features of action. Properties of steam. Expansion of steam in the cylinder. Compound expansion The slide valve. Governing of engines. Types of steam turbines. Internal combustion engines using gas or oil. The four-stroke cycle.

"THE PILGRIMAGES ORDINANCE, No. 13 OF 1896."

THE following rules and orders made by the Governor, with the advice of the Executive Council, under Ordinance No. 13 of 1896, entitled "An Ordinance relating to Pilgrimages," for the conduct of the Kataragama pilgrimage and festival, where special precautions have been and are necessary, are published for general information, in lieu of the rules promulgated annually for several years.

Colonial Secretary's Office, Colombo, October 31, 1913. By His Excellency's command, R. E. STUBBS, Colonial Secretary.

Rules.

1: For sanitary reasons the duration of the Kataragama Ilmahakachchie festival and of the stay of pilgrims at Kataragama shall be and it is hereby limited to two days, namely, November 14 and 15, 1913. Pilgrims arriving before the day first named or staying beyond the period here prescribed shall be guilty of an offence.

2. It shall be lawful for the Police authorities or any Police Magistrate at any place on the line of march to prohibit from proceeding all persons who, by reason of disease, infirmity, weakness, advanced age, youth, want of supplies, or other sufficient cause, are considered unfit to undertake the journey, or who appear likely to fall ill and endanger the health of others; and to require such persons to find security to ensure their obedience to the orders so given. In default of such security being found, it shall be lawful for the said Police authorities or Police Magistrate to detain such persons in custody for a period not exceeding three days.

3. In the event of an epidemic breaking out at Kataragama during the festival, it shall be lawful for the officers appointed to enforce the observance of orders to declare the festival at an end, and to direct pilgrims at once to leave the village and proceed to their homes, and to prescribe the roads they have to travel.

4. The officers appointed to enforce the observance of orders shall have power on the line of march to and from Kataragama and at Kataragama—

- (a) To appoint particular places to be exclusively used by the pilgrims for washing and bathing, for drawing water and drinking, and for natural offices.
- (b) To appoint places for the occupation of each class of pilgrims.
- (c) To prescribe routes for the journey of any body of pilgrims.
- (d) To regulate the distribution of all food given to pilgrims.
- (e) To fix separate places of abode for pilgrims who fall ill, to prohibit communication with them, and to detain them if unfit to travel.

Any person disobeying an order given by the appointed officers shall be guilty of an offence.

5. The Police are empowered and required to seize and destroy all food condemned as unwholesome on the march or in camp by the Medical Officer, or, if there be none, by the Chief Officer of Police ; and any persons resisting or obstructing the Police in the discharge of this or of any other duty prescribed by these rules shall be deemed guilty of an offence.

6. Any person bringing any cattle or cart bulls within three miles of the camp shall be deemed guilty of an offence.

7. Any person selling meat in camp in any other place than that assigned for the purpose by the officer in charge of the camp, and any other person selling food condemned as unwholesome by the Medical Officer, or in his absence by the Chief Officer of Police, shall be deemed guilty of an offence.

8. Any person who shall, during the occupation of the camp, use any other place for offices of nature than that provided for the purpose by Government, or failing to cover the deposit with earth or sand, and any person who shall during the same period bathe in or enter the river above the spot appointed by the officer in charge of the camp, shall be deemed guilty of an offence.

9. Any person suffering from an infectious or a contagious disease, and not reporting the same to the Medical Officer, or in his absence to the Chief Officer of Police, and any person abetting or assisting in the concealment of such disease, shall be deemed guilty of an offence.

10. All persons shall take up the quarters assigned to them by the Chief Officer of Police at the halting places and in the camp, and any person declining or neglecting to do so shall be deemed guilty of an offence.

11. The number of pilgrims for the pilgrimage of the year 1913 is restricted to 500.

12. No person shall proceed on the pilgrimage in the year 1913 without having first obtained ticket from the Government Agent of the Western Province for the Colombo band, or from the Government Agent of the North-Central Province for the Anuradhapura band, or from the Government Agent of the Southern Province for the Galle band, or from the Government Agent of the North-Western Province for the Kurunegala band, or from the Government Agent of the Northern Province for the Batticaloa band, or from the Government Agent of the Northern Province for the Jaffna band, or from the Government Agent of the Province of Uva for the Badulla band, or from the Government Agent of the Province of Sabaragamuwa for the Ratnapura band, or from the Government Agent of the Central Province for the Kandy band.

13. Every person proceeding on the pilgrimage shall show his ticket when required to do so by any officer of Police, or by any officer appointed to enforce the observance of orders under the Ordinance aforesaid.

14. The transfer of a ticket by the person named in it and the use of it by any other person are forbidden.

MISCELLANEOUS DEPARTMENTAL NOTICES.

"N pursuance of the provisions of section 12 of the Ordinance No. 19 of 1907, intituled "An Ordinance to consolidate and amend the Laws relating to the Registration of Marriages, other than the Marriages of Kandyans or of Muhammadans," I, Bertram Hill, Registrar-General of Ceylon, do hereby notify that the under-mentioned buildings, used as a place of public Christian worship, have been duly registered for the solemnization of marriages therein :--

No.	Date of Description.		Situation.	Minister or Proprietor or Trustee.	Religious Denomination on whose behalf the Building is registered.		
29 0	October 28, 1913	St. Anna's (a cadjan bungalow)	Manipay in Valikamam West of Jaffna District	Right Rev. H. Joulain, O.M.I., Bishop of Jaffna Proprietor	Roman Catholic		
	Registrar-General's Offic	ce,		B	ERTRAM HILL,		
	Colombo, October 28,			Registrar-General			
	• •				<u>ه</u> .		

Statement of Arrivals and Departures of Immigrant Coolies (a) during the Month of September, 1913, and (b) for the First Nine Months of 1913, together with Figures for the corresponding Months and Periods of the previous Year. Total for September, September, September, Total for Balance of Arrivals September, 1913. *1*912. Nine Months, 1913. Nine Months, 1912. over Departures. Port. 1913. 7912. Dep.1913. 1912. Arr. Arr. Dep. Dep. Arr. Dep. Arr.

6,294 .. 100,363 .. 74,560 .. 93,314 ... 62,339 25,803 .. 6,790 Colombo.. 11,247 .. 12.33930,975 H. M. Customs, J. CONROY. Colombo, October 24, 1913. for Principal Collector.

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON.

Results of London Matriculation Examination, June, 1913.

CEYLON (COLOMBO). First Division De Mel, Cecil Edmund Nehemiah Jeremias Royal College. 5014 .. - 10 De Zoysa, Roland Ananda College and Royal College. 5019 •1• . . Fernando, Richard Walter Prince of Wales's College, Moratuwa, and Colombo Training 5023. College. Fonseka, James Mervyn Royal College. 5026 •:• St. Thomas's College. 5035 Jayaratne, Martin de Silva ... ۰. . . Jayawickrama, James Henry Valentine S. 5034St. John's College, Panadure, and Royal College. • • +18 Mendis, Jacob Anicetus 5046St. Thomas's College. • : • . . Poulier, Reginald Sydney Vernon ... Royal College. 5050 ... Second Division. St. John's College, Panadure. De Silva, Marakkalage Charles 5016 • • Fernando, Joseph ... Fernando, Weediya-arachchige Eramonis St. Joseph's College. 5022۰. Private study. 5024 . . ۰. Fonseka, Richard Clement ... 5028Royal College. • • • • St. Patrick's College, Jaffna, and Colombo Training College. 5029 Gnanapragasam, Antony • • . . 5031 Gunesekere, Sarling de Zoysa St. Thomas's College. ۰. . . Kapukotuwa. Senaviratna Loku Banda Dharmaraja College. 5036• • • • Karunaratna, George Wilfred Royal College. 5037 - -• • Krishnapillay, Nagalingam ... English High School, Point Pedro, and Trinity College, Kandy. St. Thomas's College. 5040 . . • ; Saravanapavan, Namasivayam 5052 Seneviratne, Benedict Emerson Royal College. 5056 ۰. . . 5060 Seneviratne, Victor Emmanuel Perera St. Thomas's College. Education Department, J. HARWARD. Colombo, October 24, 1913. Director of Education.

Mr. C. W. Newton

Frotoft Estate Vernacular Boys' School, which is situated in Ramboda district of the Central Province.

Rev. J. Backus Marawanpalam Vernacular Mixed School, which is situated in Tenmaradchi of the Jaffna District of the Northern Province. Observations will be received not later than December 1, 1913.

Education Department, Colombo, October 28, 1913.

J. HARWARD, Director of Education.

.909

NOTICE is hereby given that on application has been received from the Colombo Buddhist Theosophical Society for permission to move their Kossinna Vernacular Girls' School to a new site, which is about $\frac{1}{4}$ mile to the north-east of the present one.

Observations will be received not later than December 1, 1913.

J. HARWARD, Director of Education.

Education Department, Colombo, October 28, 1913. THE under mentioned teacher's certificate has been suspended for two years :—

Name of Teacher : D. K. Kanthaperumal.

Particulars of Certificate: II. Class, No. 9 of January 18, 1907.

December School in which last employed : Puthukuddiruppu Mixed Vernacular School.

Name of Manager : Rev. A. Lockwood. Nature of Offence : Falsification of register.

Date of Suspension : November 1, 1913.

Education Department, J. HARWARD, Colombo, October 22, 1913. Director of Education.

NOTICES CALLING FOR TENDERS.

TENDERS are hereby invited for supplying best kallundai and best country rice at Tabbowa, in the Puttalam District, North-Western Province, from January 1, 1914, to October 31, 1914.

2. All tenders should be in duplicate and sealed under one cover, and should be addressed to the Chairman of the Tender Board, Office of the Controller of Revenue, Colombo.

3. Tenders should either be deposited in the tender box in the Office of the Controller of Revenue, or be sent through the post.

4. Tenders should be marked "Tender for supply of best Kallundai and best Country Rice to the Irrigation Department" in the left hand top corner of the envelope, and should reach the Office of the Controller of Revenue not later than midday on Tuesday, November 18, 1913.

5. The tenders are to be made upon forms which will be supplied upon application either at the Office of the Director of Irrigation, Trincomalee, or at any Kachcheri, and no tender will be considered unless it is on the recognized form. Alterations must be initialled, otherwise the tenders may be treated as informal and rejected.

6. A deposit of Rs. 100 will be required to be made either at the Treasury or a Kachcheri, and a receipt produced for the same before any form of tender is issued. Should any person decline to enter into the contract within ten days of receiving notice in writing from the Head of the Depart-

• ment, or his duly authorized representative, that his tender has been accepted, such deposit will be forfeited to the Crown, and the defaulter will render himself liable to be included in the list of defaulting contractors precluded from having any concern in a Government contract. All other deposits will be returned upon signature of a contract.

7. Samples of rice tendered for are to be deposited in sealed bottles—not in bags—at the Office of the Director of Irrigation, Trincomalee, not later than November 15, 1913, labelled with the name of the tenderer, a description of the rice, and the name of the work to which the supply of rice is tendered for.

8. No tender will be considered unless in respect of it all the conditions above laid down have been strictly fulfilled.

9. The Government reserves to itself the right, without question, of rejecting any or all tenders, and the right of accepting any portion of a tender.

Office of the Director of Irrigation, J. A. BALFOUR, Trincomalee, October 21, 1913. Director of Irrigation.

TENDERS marked on the envelopes "Tender for weighing, removing, and loading into boats and carts salt issued to purchasers from the Kalpitiya Stores," from January 1, 1914, to December 31, 1915, will be received by

January 1, 1914, to December 31, 1915, will be received by the Assistant Government Agent, Puttalam, up to 12 noon on November 15, 1913. Tenderers are requested to observe the following con-

Tenderers are requested to observe the following conditions :--

(a) The rate shall be fixed for 1,000 cwt. to be weighed, removed, and loaded into boats, &c.

(b) Tenderers should be prepared to weigh, remove, and load as much as 1,200 cwt. daily.

(c) A deposit of Rs. 100 shall be made with the tender in any Kachcheri on or before November 14, 1913, to be

forfeited if the tenderer fails to enter into a contract within a reasonable time. Kachcheri receipt to be attached to the tender.

(d) Duplicate of tender to be forwarded by post to the Hon. the Controller of Revenue at the same time that the tenderer forwards the original to the Assistant Government Agent.

(e) Tenderers to name an address in Puttalam for delivery of any notices.

For further particulars apply to the Salt Inspector, Puttalam.

Puttalam Kachcheri, October 16, 1913. C. COOMARASWAMY, for Assistant Government Agent.

S EALED Tenders, marked on the envelopes "Tender or repairing the Salt Department Officers' Quarters and for providing four new Doors and Frames to Patrols' Huts at Eastern Saltern," will be received by the Assistant Government Agent, Puttalam, up to 1 P.M. on November 7, 1913, from persons willing to contract.

Specification.

All decayed and damaged materials, such as cadjans and timber, to be replaced by fresh and sound materials. Pootus to be placed on roofs to serve as weights.

Doors and windows and the beams in supervisor's bungalow to be painted in red.

Floor to be raised where required with clay, levelled, stamped, and cowdunged.

Roofs to be rethatched.

Walls to be repaired in required places and whitewashed. Kitchen and outhouses to be repaired.

Compound and verandah fences to be properly rebuilt, using good sticks, and cadjanned.

Two new locks and keys to be provided for the 1st class constable's house.

Four doors and frames with locks and keys complete to be provided for the huts of patrols Nanayakkara, Sandanam, Anthonypillai, and Francis.

The door shutters to be made of hull planks or other durable wood and frames of palu or margosa.

Floor of patrol Severinus' hut to be raised half foot high with clay.

Tenderers to observe the following conditions :---

1. Money deposit of Rs. 10 to be made in any Kachcheri on or before November 6, 1913, to be forfeited if the tenderer fails to enter into contract within a reasonable time to be determined by the Assistant Government Agent. Kachcheri receipt to be attached to the tender.

2. Tenderer must name an address in Puttalam, where all letters or notices may be served on or left for him.

3. No advance will be given. 4. The work to be completed within one

4. The work to be completed within one month after notice of acceptance of tender.

5. For further particulars apply to the Salt Inspector, Puttalam.

Puttalam Kachcheri, October 15, 1913.

C. COOMARASWAMY, for Assistant Government Agent. ENDERS are hereby invited for the supply of best kallunda rice for the use of the Public Works Department in the Koslanda district, of the Province of Uva, from December 1, 1913, to October 31, 1914:---

(1) Within the town of Koslanda.

(2) Within the departmental district of Koslanda.

2. All tenders must be in duplicate, both copies being sealed in the same envelope, and addressed to the Chairman of the Tender Board, Office of the Controller of Revenue, Colombo.

3. Tenders must be marked "Tender for the supply of Rice to the Public Works Department in the Province of Uva during 1913–1914" in the left hand top corner of the envelope, and should reach the Office of the Controller of Revenue not later than midday on November 11, 1913.

4. Tenders should either be deposited in the tender box in the Office of the Controller of Revenue, or be sent to him through the post.

5. Samples of the rice tendered for are to be deposited in sealed packets or bottles at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, Province of Uva, Badulla, not later than midday on November 11, 1913.

6. To each sample must be firmly attached a label, on which is stated the name of the tenderer, the *Gazette* number of the notice calling for the tender, and the description of the article adopted in his tender.

7. Tenders must be on forms which may be obtained at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, Province of Uva, Badulla, and no tender will be considered unless it is furnished on the recognized form thus obtained. Any alterations made in tenders should bear the initials of the tenderer, and all tenders containing alterations not so initialled will be treated as informal and rejected.

8. Parties applying for form of tender will be required to deposit the sum of Rs. 50 either at the Treasury or the Kachcheri, and produce a receipt for the same. Should the party fail to submit in accordance with the terms of the specification a bona fide tender, or to enter into the necessary contract, the sum of Rs. 50 deposited will be forfeited by way of ascertained and liquidated damages, and the defaulter will render himself liable to be included in the list of defaulting contractors precluded from having any concern in a Government contract. Upon a contract being entered into, the deposits of unsuccessful bona fide tenderers will be returned.

9. Further information may be obtained on application at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, Province of Uva, Badulla.

10. Before any tender is accepted the contractor will be required to 'sign a contract to execute and perform the works in accordance with the specification and the general conditions therein set forth, and to deposit a sum of Rs. 250 for the due and faithful performance of the contract, within ten days of receiving notice in writing signed by the Provincial Engineer, Province of Uva, Badulla, that the Government is prepared to accept his tender.

11. The Government does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any tender, and reserves to itself the right of accepting any portion of a tender.

Public Works Office, HENRY B. LEES,.

Colombo, October 16, 1913. for Director of Public Works.

ENDERS are hereby invited for the supply of best kallunda rice for the use of the Public Works Department in the North-Western Province at stations named below from December 1, 1913, to October 31, 1914 :--

Kurunegala District.

Within the town of Kurunegala. Within the departmental district of Kurunegala.

Chilaw District.

Within the town of Chilaw.

Within the departmental district of Chilaw.

Dandagama District.

Within the town of Dandagama.

Within the departmental district of Dandagama.

2. All tenders must be in duplicate, both copies being sealed in the same envelope, and addressed to the Chairman of the Tender Board, Office of the Controller of Revenue, Colombo.

3. Tenders must be marked "Tender for supply of Rice, Public Works Department, North-Western Province, during 1913-1914," in the left hand top corner of the envelope, and should reach the Office of the Controller of Revenue not later than midday on November 11, 1913.

4. Tenders should either be deposited in the tender box in the Office of the Controller of Revenue, or be sent to him through the post.

5. Samples of the rice tendered for are to be deposited in sealed packets or bottles at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, North-Western Province, Kurunegala, not later than midday on November 11, 1913.

6. To each sample must be firmly attached a label, on which is stated the name of the tenderer, the *Gazette* number of the notice calling for the tender, and the description of the article adopted in his tender.

7. Tenders must be on forms which may be obtained . at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, North-Western Province, Kurunegala, and no tender will be considered unless it is furnished on the recognized form thus obtained. Any alterations made in tenders should bear the initials of the tenderer, and all tenders containing alterations not so initialled will be treated as informal and rejected.

8. Parties applying for form of tender will be required to deposit the sum of Rs. 50 either at the Treasury or the Kachcheri, and produce a receipt for the same. Should the party fail to submit in accordance with the terms of the specification a *bona fide* tender, or to enter into the necessary contract, the sum of Rs. 50 deposited will be forfeited by way of ascertained and liquidated damages, and the defaulter will render himself liable to be included in the list of defaulting contractors precluded from having any concern in a Government contract. Upon a contract being entered into, the deposits of unsuccessful *bona fide* tenderers will be returned.

9. Further information may be obtained on application at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, North-Western Province, Kurunegala.

10. Before any tender is accepted the contractor will be required to sign a contract to execute and perform the works in accordance with the specification and the general conditions therein set forth, and to deposit a sum of Rs. 500 for Kurunegala, Rs. 300 for Chilaw District, and Rs. 250 for Dandagama District, for the due and faithful performance of the contract, within ten days of receiving notice in writing signed by the Provincial Engineer, North-Western Province, Kurunegala, that the Government is prepared to accept his tender.

11. The Government does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any tender, and reserves to itself the right of accepting any portion of a tender.

Public Works Office, HENRY B. LEES, Colombo. October 16, 1913. for Director of Public Works.

TENDERS are hereby invited for supply of best kallunda rice for the use of the Public Works Department in the Central Province at stations named below from December 1, 1913, to October 31, 1914 :--

(a) At any place within the town limits of (1) Kandy,
(2) Katugastota, (3) Pussellawa, (4) Nuwara Eliya, (5) Dimbula, and (6) Dikoya.

(b) At any place within the departmental district of (1) Kandy, (2) Katugastota, (3) Pussellawa, (4) Nuwara Eliya, (5) Dimbula, and (6) Dikoya.

2. All tenders must be in duplicate, both copies being sealed in the same envelope, and addressed to the Chairman of the Tender Board, Office of the Controller of Revenue, Colombo.

3. Tenders must be marked "Tender for supply of Rice, Central Province, 1913–1914," in the left hand top corner of the envelope, and should reach the Office of the Controller of Revenue not later than midday on November 11, 1913.

4. Tenders should either be deposited in the tender box in the Office of the Controller of Revenue, or be sent to I im through the post.

5. Samples of the rice tendered for are to be deposited in sealed packets or bottles at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, Central Province, not later than midday on November 11, 1913.

6. To each sample must be firmly attached a label, on which is stated the name of the tenderer, the *Gazette* number of the notice calling for the tender, and the description of the article adopted in his tender. 7. Tenders must be on forms which may be obtained at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, Central Province, Kandy, and no tender will be considered unless it is furnished on the recognized form thus obtained. Any alterations made in tenders should bear the initials of the tenderer, and all tenders containing alterations not so initialled will be treated as informal and rejected.

8. Parties applying for form of tender will be required to deposit the sum of Rs. 50 either at the Treasury or the Kachcheri, and produce a receipt for the same. Should the party fail to submit in accordance with the terms of the specification a bona fide tender, or to enter into the necessary contract, the sum of Rs. 50 deposited will be forfeited by way of ascertained and liquidated damages, and the defaulter will render himself liable to be included in the list of defaulting contractors precluded from having any concern in a Government contract. Upon a contract being entered into, the deposits of unsuccessful bona fide tenderers will be returned.

9. Further information may be obtained on application at the Office of the Provincial Engineer, Central Province, Kandy.

10. Before any tender is accepted the contractor will be required to sign a contract to execute and perform the works in accordance with the specification and the general conditions therein set forth, and to deposit a sum of Rs. 500 for each of the six districts for the due and faithful performance of the contract, within ten days of receiving notice in writing signed by the Provincial Engineer, Central Province, Kandy, that the Government is prepared to accept his tender.

11. The Government does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any tender, and reserves to itself the right of accepting any portion of a tender.

Public Works Office, HENRY B. LEES, Colombo, October 16, 1913. for Director of Public Works.

TENDERS are hereby invited for the purchase of the following standing green and dead trees in an area of about 150 acres of the Crown forest called Dematakadu in Panama pattu of the Akkarai pattu range, Batticaloa District, within a distance of about 56 miles from the town of Batticaloa :---

Kind.	Over 6 ft. in Girth.		to 6 ft. In Girth.		3 to $4\frac{1}{2}$ ft. in Girth.		Total.
Satinwood	1		18	••	64†	• •	83
Ranai	1		1*		5	••	7
Milla	2		12		13	• •	27
Palu	3		2			• •	5
Naval	4		2				6
Salambai	1		1		2		4
Sadawaka			1			۰.	. 1
Margosa			1		·	•••	1
Magula	9		4		7	• •	20
Kokatiya	1		3		5	۰.	9
Katutengai			-		1	••	1
Vagai		••		••	1	••	1
Total	22		45		98		165
* Dead.				† 4 dead.			
The length of the abarra trace maning from 7 to 95 ft							

The length of the above trees varies from 7 to 25 ft.

2. A rate per cubic foot for the timber in each class must be quoted, written both in words and figures.

3. The timber must be felled and removed within fourmonths of the acceptance of the tender, and any timber left unremoved within this period will revert to the Crown.

4. One-half of the purchase amount should be paid within ten days of the acceptance of the tender, and the balance before a removal permit is issued after the trees have been felled.

5. The trees have been enumerated, and a list of the same can be seen at the office of the Divisional Forest Officer, Batticaloa Division, Batticaloa.

6. All tenders should be in duplicate and sealed under one cover, and should be addressed to the Chairman of the Tender Board, Office of the Controller of Revenue, Colombo.

7. Tenders should either be deposited in the tender box in the Office of the Controller of Revenue, or be sent through the post.

8. Tenders should be marked "Tender for the purchase of Standing Timber, Batticaloa District," in the left hand top corner of the envelope, and should reach the office of the Controller of 'Revenue not later than 12 noon on Tuesday, December 2, 1913.

9. The tenders are to be made upon forms which will besupplied upon application at the Office of the Divisional Forest Officer, Batticaloa, and no tender will be considered unless it is on the recognized form. Alterations must be initialled, otherwise the tenders may be treated as informal and rejected.

10. A deposit of Rs. 20 will be required to be made either at the Treasury or Kachcheri, and a receipt produced for the same before any form of tender is issued. Should any person decline or fail to pay one-half of the purchaseamount within ten days of receiving notice from the Head of the Department, or his duly authorized representative, that his tender has been accepted, such deposit will be forfeited to the Crown, and the defaulter will render himself liable to be included in the list of defaulting contractors precluded from having any concern in a Government contract. All other deposits of unsuccessful tenderers will be returned.

11. Each tender must be accompanied by a letter signed by two responsible persons, whose addresses must be given, engaging to become security for the due payment of the purchase amount. All other necessary information can be obtained at the office referred to in section 5.

12. No tender will be considered unless in respect of it all the conditions above laid down have been strictly fulfilled.

13. The sale in Ceylon of any of the satinwood is prohibited.

14. The Government reserves to itself the right, without question, of rejecting any or all tenders, and the right of accepting any portion of a tender.

A. B. FONTYN,

Forest Office, Acting Divisional Forest Officer, Batticaloa, October 14, 1913. Batticaloa Division.

SALES OF UNSERVICEABLE ARTICLES.

A SALE of the following unserviceable articles will be held by public auction at the Railway premises, Maradana, at 2 P.M., on Wednesday, November 5, 1913:--

- 2 almirahs
- 1 bell, platform 2 basin stands, wooden
- l chain, iron
- 2 coir mats
- 6 filters
- l ladder l minor
- . 60 staff boxes
- 20 safe stands, wooden

General Manager's Office

Colombo, October 13, 1913.

y, November 5, 1913 :--- Fri 1 slop pail at 2 sunlight lamps 12 table lamps 2 2 watches 1

- 84 solid motor car tyres (average weight 1 qr. 22 lb. each)
- 11 outer covers (average weight 22 lb. each)

G. P. GREENE, · General Manager. THE under-mentioned superfluous articles will be sold by public auction at the Civil Medical Stores, Francis street, Maradana, on Tuesday, November 11, 1913, at 2 p.m.:--

300 50-lb. iron drums
200 20-lb. iron drums
150 10-lb. iron drums
1 lot tin cans of sorts
1 lot kerosine oil tins

- 1 lot bale sacking 1 lot screws
-

E. L. HUNT, for Acting Principal Civil Medical Officerand Inspector-General of Hospitals.

1 lot firewood

1 lot zinc lining

12 casks, each 100 gallons

1 lot stone jars (large)

1 lot stone jars (small)

1 lot bottles of assorted sizes.

Colombo, October 28, 1913.

NOTICE is hereby given that the under-mentioned unclaimed articles of patients who died in the hospitals between January 1, 1911, and December 31, 1912, will be sold by public auction at the District Court of Colombo on Saturday, November 15, 1913, at 12 noon :-

- 480 bangles, to be sold in 5 lots of 50 each, 8 lots
 - of 25 each, and 1 lot of 30
 - 1 lot glass bangles 22 umbrellas, to be sold in
 - 2 lots of 11 each
 - 1 silk sarong
 - 1 sash
 - 3 pairs spectacles
 - 2 pairs sandals
 - purse and 7 belts . 1
 - 3 lots cloths and banians

- 6 penknives l arecanut cutter and 3 knives in 1 lot
- brass pot 1 cash box
- 1 chain and 3 hairpins in 1 lot
- 1 lot silver studs in box
- 1 lot keys and 5 silver coat
- buttons in 1 lot
- 5 betel bags, 4 earpicks, and 2 amulets in 1 lot

- 5 men's combs, 1 hair 1 comb, and tooth brush in 1 lot
- 1 lot earrings, 1 brooch, 2 pendants, 3 nose rings, 3 toe rings, and 4 tin tickets in 1 lot
- 1 hat, 1 pipe, and 2 pencils in 1 Îot 1 watch
- 429 rings, to be sold in 3 lots of 100 each and 1 lot of 129
- 9 waist-chains
- 175 necklets of beads, to be sold in 7 lots of 25 each District Court,

Colombo, October 23, 1913.

1 lot earrings 1 silver necklet with locket

- 2 silver necklets
- 1 fountain pen
- 1 silver amulet
- 1 silver watch chain
- 5 silver bangles

1 gold locket

2 earrings, 2 silver rings, and 3 silver amulets in

- 4 pairs gold earrings
 - D. M. JANS7,

Secretary.

VITAL STATISTICS.

Registrar-General's Weekly Health Report of the City of Colombo for the Week ended October 25, 1913.

Births.-The total births registered in the city of Colombo in the week were 116 (4 Europeans, 7 Burghers, 62 Sinhalese, 13 Tamils, 23 Moors, 5 Malays, and 2 Others). The birth-rate per 1,000 per annum (calculated on the estimated population on July 1, 1913, viz., 235;829) was 25.6, as against 22.8 in the preceding week, 23.7 in the corresponding week of last year, and 23.0 the weekly average for last year.

Deaths.-The total deaths registered were 119 (0 Europeans, 6 Burghers, 56 Sinhalese, 28 Tamils, 25 Moors, 3 Malays, and 1 Other). The death-rate per 1,000 per annum was 26.3, as against 25.2 in the previous week, 26.5 in the corresponding week of last year, and 29.5 the weekly average of last year.

Infantile Deaths.-Of the 119 total deaths, 33 were of infants under one year of age, as against 25 in the preceding week, 29 in the corresponding week of the previous year, and 30 the average of last year.

Stillbirths.-The number of stillbirths registered during the week was 8.

Selected Causes of Death.-Fifteen deaths were registered from Pneumonia (against 12 in the previous week and 17 the weekly average for last year), of which 4 were in Maradana hospitals, 2 each in San Sebastian, Kotahena, Slave Island, and Wellawatta, and 1 each in Pettah, New Bazaar, and Maradana (exclusive of hospitals). Eleven deaths were registered from Bronchitis.

Nine deaths were registered from Phthisis (against 14 in the previous week and the weekly average for last year), of which 3 were in San Sebastian, 2 in Wellawatta, and I each in Kotahena, Maradana hospitals, Maradana (exclusive of hospitals), and Slave Island.

3. No death was registered from Enteric Fever (against 5 in the previous week and the weekly average for last There were 9 cases reported during the week, against 4 in the previous week. year).

Eleven deaths were registered from Debility, 11 from Senility, 8 from Infantile Convulsions, 5 from Paralysis, 4 from Worms, 3 from Prematurity, 2 from Diarrhaea, 2 from Enteritis, 2 from Tetanus, 1 from Dysentery, 1 from Accidental Burns, and 30 from Other Causes.

Four deaths were registered from Cholera (against 8 in the previous week), of which 2 were in Kotahena and 2 in New Bazaar. Five cases of Cholera were reported during the week, against 27 in the previous week.

6. Two cases of Measles were reported, against 1 in the previous week; and 6 of Chickenpox, against 5 in the previous week.

State of the Weather.—The mean temperature of air was 80.3°, against 80.6° in the preceding week and 80.1° in the corresponding week of the previous year. The mean atmospheric pressure was 29.896 in., against 29.874 in. in the preceding week and 29.838 in the corresponding week of the previous year. The total rainfall in the week was 1.33 in., against 0.94 in in the preceding week and 2.65 in in the corresponding week of the previous year.

Registrar-General's Office. Colombo, October 28, 1913. A. DE S. WICKRAMATILAKA, for Registrar-General.

H. C. COTTLE, GOVERNMENT PRINTER, COLOMBO, CEYLON.

- 1 lot
- gem
- 1 lot nose rings (silver)
- 1 lot thalis

913